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John Messenger – Commodore 

I have now had the honour of being your Commodore for two years

which is the maximum term, and I must now step down from this

position and the Board of Directors.

I have been reflecting on what has happened at our great Club since

1993 when John Keelty asked me to join the Marina & Site

Committee, we have certainly come a long way. We have a new

floating marina, totally refurbished Clubhouse, a new start boat, ten

new Elliott 6.0s and two new coach boats for the Youth Sailing

Academy, but on the downside we do not have a working slipway.

This remains a Board priority and is being pushed by Vice

Commodore Geoff Lavis but unfortunately we are meeting any

number of obstacles as we press forward in this issue.

As I write this report we are in the midst of dialogue with NSW

Waterways who are at present revaluing our asset with a view to

raising more revenue which they say is fair and equitable.This will

probably lead to increases in marina fees and has certainly slowed

our revamping of the slipway and adjoining facilities.We are also

dealing with them on the matter of yacht sponsorship and boats in

charter/survey which is another area that they are seeking to make

changes to.

On a brighter note, we have Rolex as a major sponsor of our Sydney

Hobart Race which this year is celebrating 60 years.This promises to

be a great event and Rear Commodore Martin James heads the

Rolex Sydney Hobart Yacht Race Committee in charge of the

organisation.This race could not be run successfully without the

assistance of the Royal Yacht Club of Tasmania, the people of Hobart,

and the media and I wish to thank all of them. Our Media Director

and Offshore Editor Peter Campbell is retiring this year after covering

the event since its inception and I thank him and wish him well.

BMW Sydney are once again the sponsors of our very popular

Winter Series, Hahn sponsor our Monday Spinnaker Series, St Arnou

the Wednesday Twilight Series, FKP our Sydney Mooloolaba Race and

Canon the Canon Big Boat Challenge.We are at present close to

signing a sponsor for the Sydney Gold Coast Race. Several

sponsorships are coming to an end and anyone with ideas in this field

should contact Lisa Ratcliff.

The Youth Sailing Academy under the leadership of Jenni Bonnitcha

has gone from strength to strength and gained an international

reputation. It is fulfilling our aim of giving young people the chance to

learn our wonderful sport and providing yacht owners with very

good young crews.

Apart from our running of very successful on water yachting events,

we have our Clubhouse which is the hub around which all activities

take place.Your Board has been very focused on providing member

benefits and functions to be enjoyed by all members so you are

proud to call the CYCA your Club and I am pleased to report that

this is going well.The Club has been well attended throughout the

year as have functions put on by the Member Services Committee,

Associates Committee and our Cruising group. I wish to personally

thank the Associates and Cruising group and assure them of the

Club’s continued support. Our Bistro is well supported and we are

addressing the issue of low numbers in the restaurant.

A great Club like ours cannot run without volunteers and we are

extremely lucky to have great assistance in this area. I wish to thank

all volunteers who have assisted with Club functions and races

including the Rolex Sydney Hobart Yacht Race and hope this great

Club spirit will continue in the future.We will certainly need

volunteers for this year’s 60th Race.The Breakfast Club under the

leadership of Phil Grounds and Alan Brown provides breakfasts prior

to the BMW Sydney Winter Series Races and use the proceeds to

purchase various equipment needed by the Club.Thank you very

much for your tireless efforts.

Financially the Club is in a healthy position and this is dealt with fully

in the Treasurer’s Report.

During May 2004 our Chief Executive Officer Joe Goddard resigned

to take up a position managing a marina complex in Dubai. I wish

him well in his new position and he will certainly be missed.We are

currently interviewing prospective applicants to fill this position.

I would like to thank all our hard working staff, both permanent and

casual, for the great job they do in running our Club day to day and

in particular, Christina Del Conte, Nina McKinnon, Maria Lister and

Scott Finsten, who have been so much assistance to me personally. I

would also like to thank my hard working Board of Directors and the

members of the various Committees. All work tirelessly for the Club

in an unpaid capacity and I remind them and their members that they

too are members of the Club and need to enjoy themselves. Most

are standing for next year’s Board and have my full support.

Finally, I want to thank all members of the CYCA and various other

organisations who contribute so much to our Club, you have all

made my job as Commodore easy and I hope that I leave the

position with the Club in good shape. I am very proud of our Club

and will now enjoy Club life and my sailing, but will always be on

hand if I can assist.
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Alan Green – Treasurer 

This year has been particularly interesting. It has been a difficult

year, largely because the costs have increased, while revenues

have remained relatively stable.This means that while there has

been a focus on increased cost control, and endeavours to

increase the revenue, I suspect we have not gone far enough.The

accounting treatment of the websites is one item which has had

quite a significant impact on the final profit result and was not

resolved until very late in the financial year.The performance of

many of the sections from a revenue perspective remained stable

(for more detail see the Supplementary Information at the back

of this report). On the whole revenue before expenses only

increased by about $51,000 or almost 0.7%, which is not very

significant.Yet expenses, particularly after depreciation, increased

far more significantly. It is for this reason that profit is down

significantly.This is not really a concern, because we are a Club

interested in sailing, not profit-making.We need to confident that

we can continue to pay our bills and that we have money for the

future. From a total perspective, you will see that we are well on

track (as I proposed several years ago) to pay off all our long

term liabilities and borrowings. Of course this could be reduced

at a faster rate, but we have to leave money to pay the bills.We

have clear support from our sponsors and that indicates our

future position is not only stable but is also strong. Our

fundamentals are improving all the time, with our staff again doing

amazing work in each of their areas.The Club is performing well

and our sailing events (including our Youth Sailing Academy), the

very reasons for our existence, are getting better and better.

Again this year’s result is the outcome of the work of our

Members, our volunteers (who always step up in their multitudes

at every turn), and our staff.We also must give special thanks to

our many sponsors, without whom many of the events and

functions that we hold could not occur.

We achieved a profit this year of  $186,603.This is down from

last year’s result of $395,123. I would like to explain why this 

has happened.

There were periods that were very tight, with some extra

unexpected costs and with revenues not always performing as

expected. Our staff again pulled out all stops, they acted to

control the expenditures for which they were responsible.The

revenue cannot be so easily controlled by the staff. It is

determined by our actions as Members, such as in attending the

sailing events and functions held at the Club.You may also recall

that the Board had decided not to (or at least to only modestly)

increase certain fees, and has offered Member discounts over the

last few years.This in turn has contributed in part to the modest

growth in revenue. Irrespective, it is the return to Members in

terms of service and benefit from the Club which I believe is

important. I believe that Member services have improved as a

result of the various Board decisions.

The major reasons for the decline in profitability are shown in the

detailed Financial Report. I draw your attention to the comment

on Page 20 of the report under “Review and Results of

Operations.”You can see that Depreciation increased by almost

$95,000, mostly from increased depreciation of what is called

plant and equipment, but also due to the depreciation of the

increased numbers of boats that are available to assist in starting

the events that the Club undertakes.The catering arrangements

have cost us in terms of expenses, shown in the accounts as

Temporary Services. Another major area of change in the area of

property has been the need to prepay land and Waterways

rentals.These expenses are quite significant and as a whole it has

reduced the profit.What is important is to compare the year on

year changes to see where the most significant variations have

taken place. For all of this, the future is bright.We have the very

best of sponsors in Rolex to assist with our Rolex Sydney Hobart

Yacht Race and we have sponsors not only for our major sailing

events, but also for the Youth Sailing Academy and for the popular

weekly Members’ Badge Draws. As I said previously, without the

wonderful support of all of these sponsors, the position would

certainly be very different.
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Treasurer’s Report (Continued)

Clearly, we cannot become complacent, we need to exercise

continuing and firm financial control. I know from the direction of

the present Board that this control will not be at the expense of

reducing Member benefits.

In terms of our outstanding debts, we are progressing to the

schedule I set down several years ago. It will take a good few

years to get on top of the present debts, but the facilities that we

are establishing at the present time, and the benefit that we are

creating for future Members is something that will be of long

term benefit.

My Report

The key issue was trying to maintain revenue, while controlling

expenses.This has been achieved by ever increasing participation

in our sailing events, which brings in revenue while carefully

controlling and paring down the expenditures where possible. I

think we achieved this without any noticeable decline in service

levels. Our Balance Sheet (the old term to describe it) is moving

back to a more healthy position compared to the last few years,

with both our current and non-current liabilities being brought

more under control.The financial ratios that so many accountants

appear to place store in are still not what we used to have in the

earlier days, but we appear to be on the road to getting back to

solid ground. As I mentioned before we are not a Club here to

simply make profits, we are here to encourage and foster the

sport of sailing.

The Notes to the Accounts contain a couple of new items, the

changes are not signifcant other than we have chosen to treat

staff sick leave and other staff entitlements a little differently.We

also chose to write off some of what were previously capitalised

costs for items that we could see no clear future commercial

benefit from.

All the other usual items are reported upon.The results are well

within their expected ranges. Again, please note  at the back of

the report, where we re-introduced reporting by individual areas

as requested by some Members, that we have expanded the

data provided so that Members can have more information on

the long term trends and performance of the particular areas.

Again this year I take this opportunity to thank our Club

Accountant Nina McKinnon, who has spent an innumerable

number of hours working to control and report on our financial

position. All of our staff are to be commended for their

commitment and high level of support to the Club.

Again this year, because of the financial position, our Audit,

Planning & Risk Committee worked at an incredible level. I would

like to thank each of the Committee members and our staff who

presented at the interminable meetings so that we could agree

the controls, set the changes and determine the future course of

our expenditures.

Major Directions

The focus again needs to turn to stabilisation.We need to

maintain the high levels of control over our expenditure.While I

mentioned we had sponsors, we need to have more sponsors 

for our Youth Sailing Academy.This should be our challenge as (I

have said it before) the youth are the future of our Club and the

sport of sailing.The youth are a group that deserves our strong

ongoing support.

I wanted to take this opportunity to thank you for your support

and the opportunity to serve as your Treasurer over the years. I

have fulfilled this role over the last eight years. I think we have

achieved a giant amount. I know that I have been responsible for

bringing the Club through a difficult period, but I want you to

know that it would have been impossible without the help of

every Member, every volunteer, each sponsor and our very

valuable staff.Thank you all.
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Audit, Planning & Risk Committee Report
Martin James – Chairman, Rear Commodore

The Company has an Audit, Planning and Risk Committee with its

own charter.

The Committee has during the last year focused on issues

relating to the governance of the Company and its subsidiary

(CYCA SOLAS Limited), its forward planning (particularly

financial planning) and the management of its risks. The

Committee’s responsibilities include:

• reviewing the adequacy of existing external and internal 

audit arrangements, the Company’s accounting policies and

practices, the financial statements and the Company’s internal

control systems;

• giving the Board additional assurance regarding the quality and

reliability of financial information prepared for use by the Board;

• reviewing the rents and other periodic receivables of the

Company and implementing reviews of the amount of those

rents and receivables;

• reviewing and approving draft annual budgets prepared 

by management;

• liaising with KPMG, the Company’s external auditors and

reporting to the Board on the auditor’s findings;

• monitoring compliance with the Company’s and its 

subsidiary's statutory responsibilities including those under 

the Corporations Act, the Registered Clubs Act and

environmental laws;

• reviewing regular reports on the Company’s insurance affairs

and reviewing policy terms. During the last year the

Committee has implemented a change of underwriter of the

public liability and directors and officers insurance, realising a

significant premium saving in the process;

• reviewing policies and procedures relating to the Company’s

risk management and making recommendations to the Board

as to appropriate risk management strategies;

• the monitoring of compliance with approved policies;

• reviewing the Company’s compliance with its taxation obligations;

• considering matters relating to the information technology

requirements of the Company including, during the last 

year, commencing a project for the replacement of the 

existing systems;

• an ongoing audit of the procedures employed by the 

Company in its conduct of its major races, including conducting

spot audits of the operations of the Sailing Office prior to all

major races;

• dealing with litigation and other claims against the Company,

including those arising out of the 1998 Telstra Sydney Hobart

Yacht Race;

• reviewing, negotiating and signing-off on all significant

contractual arrangements and other long-term commitments

entered into by the Company, particularly the agreements 

with St Arnou and other sponsors;

• the oversight of the operation of the CYCA Sydney Hobart

Yacht Race Safety of Life at Sea Trusts; and;

• during the last year, reviewing the Company’s security and

arranging for the installation of security cameras and additional

motion detectors.

All of this would not be possible without the assistance and

support of the members of the Committee. I would therefore

like to thank Treasurer Alan Green and Directors Matt Allen 

and Michael Cranitch for their respective contributions during 

the last year.



Roger Hickman – Chairman, Rear Commodore

So very many capable and eager volunteers support the CYCA,

who along with the staff of the Club, have provided our members

and hundreds of other sailors with a successful and enjoyable

year of boating.

Richard Grubb and his wonderful team on board the start boat

have rolled through a big year and provided us all with very

capable on-water race management. John Kirkjian and the many

other valuable Protest Committee people give a large amount of

their time to support the sailing events of the CYCA as has

Mervyn Clarke, who co-ordinated a new initiative designed to

match up owners and crews.

John Kirkjian should also be recognised for his huge effort 

with the Safety Auditor’s processes and his involvement and

commitment towards Yachting NSW Special Regulations.

Of course the many other Special Regulations Auditors that assist

all our yacht owners to understand and work with the safety

equipment on their yachts must also be thanked.

Tim Cox, Chairman of the Rolex Sydney Hobart Yacht Race, is a

very valuable and capable volunteer who is supported by several

other members including two from the Royal Yacht Club of

Tasmania to ensure that the race is well managed.The many

volunteers who supported the race both in Sydney and in

Hobart must be thanked and congratulated on a great job.

David Kellett is certainly a huge contributor to our group of

volunteers.With the very valuable support of Club member

Harcourt Gough and his beautiful yacht Four Seasons, David

takes on the role of skippering the Radio Relay Vessel in the race

to Hobart. David and his expert team provide this vital link for

the race and ensure that along with Tim and his team, the race is

in good hands.

John Brooks is yet another person who contributed enormously

to the Club. John heads up a special team that manages and

implements, if required, the Rolex Sydney Hobart Yacht Race

Emergency Management Team.

Also to be recognised is John Keelty and his team who organise

and run all cruising aspects of the Club as they work tirelessly 

to provide innovative and enjoyable cruising for many of our 

Club members.

The Sailing Committee is made up of a group of volunteers that

provide a wealth of knowledge and a bunch of time to ensure

that CYCA racing, sailing and cruising can be carried out at a 

high level of awareness and enjoyment.The relationship between

the Sailing Committee and the CYCA Board has been one of

close liaison during this year where major impact decisions have

been made.

Last year I mentioned, “Our aim is to align the Club with world

mainstream ocean racing and yet set standards that other Clubs

believe are ones they would aspire to”.We have continued down

this path with a big involvement in the Special Regulations of our

sport.We are constantly monitoring rating systems which has

lead to the recent shift to the IRC handicap method for our Club

racing.We have worked on all issues of the Rolex Sydney Hobart

Yacht Race and are continuing to develop the Rolex Regatta, to

be held in mid-December, into a special event.

The CYCA Sailing Committee has had some difficult and

demanding decisions to make and with the Board of the Club

have established that the 2004 Rolex Sydney Hobart Yacht Race

winner will be decided by using the IRC method of handicapping.

IMS has served us very well as a handicap method in the past but

has lost a little of its popularity in Australia and at the CYCA,

possibly due to the new breed of faster, lighter weight style yachts

not rating as well using that method.The IMS method continues

however, to provide very valuable stability information which is

vital to our ocean racing.

The issue of an upper size limit and upper handicap limit has also

taken much effort to establish the best way forward.
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The Club hosted a seminar for current maxi boat owners,

potential interested owners and yacht designers – many issues of

these large boats were discussed. From these discussions, which

included overseas interested parties and a watchful eye out on

international developments, the Board of the CYCA has

established that the continued use of a handicap upper limit is

proving of little value and thus a move to use length overall has

been favoured for the foreseeable future.

Last year’s Rolex Sydney Hobart Yacht Race again proved to be a

great event in all respects, as indicated by the closeness of the

race that resulted in Michael Spies and his excellent team

emerging as victors.This handicap race showed yet again that it is

both difficult to win and can take many years of trying to achieve

such a result.Well done to Michael who epitomises the will and

determination required to win the George Adams Tattersalls Cup.

Howard de Torres sailed well throughout the season to win the

most prestigious of CYCA trophies, the Blue Water

Championship. In fact, Howard on Nips N Tux dominated the

CYCA season. Howard also won the Cape Byron Trophy and the

Tasman Performance Trophy to cap off a superbly consistent

season.The Performance Handicapping System managed by John

Maclurcan worked very well, providing some of the closest results

in summer racing. Its success was borne out by Howard’s clean

sweep of the offshore series.

The other major sailing events have been the CYCA Short

Ocean Pointscore during the summer, the Hahn Premium

Monday Spinnaker Twilight Series and the St Arnou Wednesday

Twilight Series which were all well supported and proved popular

amongst our members and other keen sailors.The BMW Sydney

Winter Series had a record number of entries and also proved

enormously popular which would indicate that the formula of

pursuit-style racing is well-liked and will continue unchanged.

The CYCA was well represented outside our local sailing with

Matt Allen having a very good year, winning the Sailing South

Regatta in Hobart, Skandia Geelong Race Week and the

Australian Offshore Championships. Matt also teamed up with

Sean Langman and Tony Kirby to win the Teams Event in the

Brisbane to Gladstone Race.

Sailing, racing and cruising at our Club is what we are all there 

for, and our membership is valuable.The sailing we provide is,

as is our endeavour, first class. Our Members are a great

resource and opinions are valuable to us so seek out your Sailing

Committee representative and chat about issues that concern

you in order for us to move in a direction that you as a member

would like. Also please assist us by ensuring that all the people

you sail with are members of Yachting Australia, as a commitment

to this organisation will ensure a whole lot more growth in our

sport of yachting.

Finally congratulations should go to our sailing manager Justine

Kirkjian who has had a big and very successful year. Our racing

has been conducted without any major issues and Justine and her

small but effective staff of Toni Curren and Roger Wragby have

worked very hard this year to ensure a difficult job is well done.

The marina staff, as with all the CYCA staff, have worked hard to

ensure that the 2003/2004 sailing season was a very good one.

We all look forward to and are preparing for the 60th Rolex

Sydney Hobart Yacht Race and trust that the race will be both

safe and will provide the stimulating ocean racing that this Club is

known around the world for.

Sailing is fun, good sailing is up to you!



Chairman Matt Allen – Director

The CYCA Youth Sailing Academy (YSA) celebrated its 10-year

anniversary with an outstanding year of sailing at all levels.

It has been important for the YSA to find a balance between

taking young sailors to an advanced level and performing an

introductory role so as to get more young people into both 

our sport and our Club.This year we have concentrated on

increasing the profile of the YSA and its courses so as to fill all 

the available places.

It is pleasing that our schools and introductory courses are now

usually over booked.This means that a greater number of young

people are being introduced to our sport and trained in our

courses.With more coaching resources available to the YSA and

more demand for our courses, we can now schedule more

training at the introductory and intermediate level going forward.

The progression of youth sailors onto Members' boats and their

distinguished performances provide Club Members with great

assurance of the future of the sport.

The results from sailors representing the CYCA at interclub and

international level were the strongest since the YSA's inception.

The Academy continues to reach the broader community

through the expansion of school and university programs and

initiatives that provide opportunities for people with

disadvantages or disabilities.

An indication of the YSA’s potential came when a young team,

skippered by Seve Jarvin, won the World Series Yachting Three

Boat Match Racing on Sydney Harbour. Seve then combined with

Robert Bell and Sam Newton to win the 37th Governors Cup

(USA Junior Match Racing Championship), the Harken NSW

Youth Match Racing Championship, the Club Marine Australian

Youth Match Racing Championship, the CYCA's Accord Logistics

International Youth Match Racing Championship and RPAYC's

Harken International Youth Match Racing Championship.

Further results exemplify the strength and depth of skill in the

CYCA's young sailors. An under 25s team, skippered by Richard

Howard, represented the Club at Cowes Youth Week and

finished 6th after entering the regatta ranked 17th. Other YSA

teams benefited from a broad range of opportunities and were

placed 3rd in the Accord Logistics Youth Match Racing

Championship, 4th, 5th and 6th in the Club Marine Australian

Youth Match Racing Championship, 2nd, 4th and 5th in the

Harken NSW Youth Match Racing Championship, 6th in the

Warren Jones U/25 Match Racing Championship (Royal

Freshwater Bay Yacht Club), 5th in the Hardy Cup U/25 Match

Racing Championship (RSYS), 6th in the Royal Port Nicholson

International Youth Match Racing Championship and 3rd in the

RNZYS International Youth Match Racing Championship.

Young women sailors in the YSA continued to strengthen their

capabilities. For the first time the YSA was able to enter two

womens teams in the Newport Womens Match Racing, finishing

3rd.The RPAYC's W.O.M.E.N.S Grade 3 Regatta saw a YSA team

finish 4th and 5th. It is pleasing to see a higher proportion of

young women in our courses and we are confident that this

trend will continue.

There is a continued flow of YSA sailors onto members' yachts,

some achieving exceptional results.These opportunities that are

so generously provided by Club Members are greatly appreciated.

Four YSA members crewed on separate Rolex Sydney Hobart

Yacht Race entries, with Andrew Joyce, 19, playing a key role as

navigator of the overall winner, First National. Other YSA sailors

have competed in the Sydney Gold Coast Race (Richard Howard

being a key part of the winning crew on Tow Truck), the Coffs

Harbour Race, the Sydney Mooloolaba Race and many other

inshore and offshore events.

Other opportunities for the integration of YSA sailors into Club

activities included the loading of the baggage containers on

Boxing Day for the Rolex Sydney Hobart Yacht Race, and the

Directors Regatta in February in which two YSA sailors crewed

for each Director, resulting in an increased appreciation of the

sailing skills of all.This was an excellent opportunity to introduce

many of the young sailors in the YSA to the Directors in a sailing

environment. It was found to be beneficial to all, although many of

the Directors struggled to walk for a few days afterwards!

Annual Report: year end 31 March 2004 Cruising Yacht Club of Australia10
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Given the YSA's increasingly high profile and reputation, positions

in all training squads are in high demand.The Introductory School

Holiday Programs see many participants choosing to return every

holiday and a continual stream of new applicants applying.

Graduates from this and many of our mid-week school programs

are invited to join the Intermediate Squad – a new and very

popular initiative in 2003.The highly competitive Advanced Squad

– with 34 participants every weekend through winter – is the

final progression for graduates of these programs and for talented

sailors from feeder dinghy Clubs.The dedication of these sailors

can be noted on early Winter Sunday mornings with Elliott 6

training taking place before each BMW Sydney Winter Series Race.

In addition to these training programs, the YSA enjoys its

opportunities to work with the broad community through its

relationship with The Freedman Foundation and Sailors with

disABILITIES.The Freedman Foundation program was expanded

to include 12 disadvantaged schools and 48 students.The support

of sailors from the Advanced Squad is integral to the success of

this program. Students from Macquarie Boys Technical High wrote

in appreciation "sailing was really cool… keep up the good work

and keep all the instructors because you all are fantastic.”YSA

sponsor Sailors with disABILITIES conducted two very successful

two day regattas in October and March.

It was also good to welcome Eden Marine High for their annual

visit in December.This program continues to be part of the

CYCA’s thank you to the Eden community for their support

during the Rolex Sydney Hobart Yacht Races and is always

extremely successful.

Umpire and Race Management courses conducted by the YSA in

2003 provided an opportunity for a large group of volunteers

and staff to enhance their skills.This skill base was honed in a

number of Club youth match racing regattas – including the

Kellett Shield, Hirst and All Marine Series – before the CYCA

conducted state, national and international match racing regattas

and numerous fleet racing regattas.These included the very

popular Womens Marinassess Regatta (expanded to a two day

regatta), the Mount Gay Top Jocks (Champion of Champions)

Regatta, and a number of other regattas conducted in the 

Elliott 6 fleet.

The addition of two coach boats has assisted in the conduct of

both training activities and regatta management. One of these –

the ‘Gary McPike’ – was generously donated by Mary Ann

Maxwell, Gary's widow. Andrew Short's support in their fit-out

and the purchase of both engines was greatly appreciated.

The YSA is greatly indebted to all our sponsors. I was pleased 

this year to welcome two new Elliott 6 sponsors, Club members

Neville Christie (Camp Eden) and Geoff Morgan and Andrew

Banks (Talent2), who join Musto,Toll, Sydney Yachts, Club 

Marine,Village Roadshow (MMM), KAZ/Sailors with disABILITIES,

and Quite Little Drink. On-going sponsorships with Harken

(ropes and deck hardware), Hood Sails (sails) and International

Paints (anti-fouling) continue to provide the YSA with well-

maintained boats.

The YSA would also like to thank all those members who

support youth sailors with their direct donation or donation to

the Australian Sports Foundation.

I would like to express a special thanks to Ben Croucher who has

worked tirelessly for the YSA for the last six years. Ben's

meticulous maintenance of the boats, his warmth and friendly

caring manner will be missed. I wish him well in his new career. I

welcome Euan McNicol to the YSA staff. Euan is an ex-YSA sailor,

an extremely capable high level coach and a very talented sailor

in his own right.

In conclusion, I would like to thank Jenni Bonnitcha for her extreme

dedication throughout the year.The increase in reputation and

profile of the YSA, the demand for all the courses we run, and

the terrific results achieved are largely due to her efforts.
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Captain John Keelty

Our change of format for CYCA Cruising is proving to be 

quite popular with members with all of our evenings being 

well attended.

During the past 12 months we have held social evenings with

information on sailing holiday destinations in Cuba,Turkey, Croatia

and New Caledonia, together with Educational Seminars on

Heavy Weather Sailing, Medical Advice for Offshore Sailors, Radio

Communications and Computer Technology onboard yachts.

At our sailing holiday destination evenings we have had Club

members who have recently returned from a visit to the area

relate their experiences together with information on how to

arrange a sailing holiday or visit there. In order to capture the

true spirit of each country, the presentations were accompanied

by entertainment and local drinks, including a CYCA special

cocktail.To complete these evenings L eat, our caterers, rose to

the occasion by researching and providing a menu of traditional

fare from each country.

Highlights of our sailing destination evenings include “Sabine” the

Turkish Belly Dancer who had everyone on their feet; the

attendance by the Consulate General of the Republic of Croatia,

Professor Goroslav Keller, who very generously provided all with

samples of traditional grappa from his personal cellar ; and the

lucky door prize of two return air tickets to New Caledonia

courtesy of Brook Felsenthal of Charter World Yachting Holidays

and Aircalin.

Our educational seminars are also proving very successful and

informative so much so that revisits to each topic have been

requested, especially the Heavy Weather Sailing.

Short Haul racing this year was again a successful season and

congratulations not only go to the winners of the pointscores but

to all who came along and made the season so enjoyable.

At the request of the Sailing Committee, CYCA Cruising has

submitted a set of guidelines for the Sydney Gold Coast Yacht

Race for cruising yachts to accompany the fleet. This may be 

of interest to those yachts travelling north during the cooler

months to destinations such as Airlie Beach or joining in the

racing at Hamilton Island.The entrants in this division will not 

be racing but will be accompanying the fleet and competing for

a trophy based on engine hours used (if any) and predicted

times of arrival at waypoints on the course, a great way of

cruising in company.

My thanks to all who have assisted in making CYCA Cruising so

successful this year with special thanks to;

• The members of the Cruising Committee: Pat Goldstiver, Denis

Doyle, Sharondell Grannen, Patricia and Peter Cox, Kate Dixon,

Colin Alleck, Caryl Rourke, Rob Lewin, Ivy Green and a very

special thanks to my wife Margaret whose assistance and

support makes it all happen;

• Trevor Joyce from Mariner Boating and Brook Felsenthal from

Charter World Yachting Holidays;

• All of our speakers and entertainers, including members:

Shaaron Walsh, George and Sabrina Snow,Teki Dalton, Peter

Messenger, Scott Jutson, Ed Psaltis, Roger Hickman, Bob Fraser,

Andy Dovell and Bill Bailey and crew;

• CYCA staff: Christina, Scott, Marina, Joe, Churti, Natalie,

Nina, Lisa, Maria and Deb and all of the staff who assisted in 

our evenings;

• Our Treasurer Alan Green, Commodore John Messenger and

the Board.

Without the assistance and support of all these people the

events would not occur and run so smoothly.

CYCA Cruising Repor t
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Chairman Geoff Lavis – Vice Commodore

The floating marina continues to be an outstanding success for

the Club, its members and visitors.Whilst it is a wonderful asset

for the Club, its success is the cause of some angst amongst our

boat owning Club members due to the never diminishing waitlist

for berths.The Marina and Site Committee continually assess

applications for permanent berths, however very little new space

is created, as most owners who already are permanent berth

holders, when selling their boat, generally upgrade to a larger

boat.This, in itself, has created new pressures due to the limited

number of larger berths available. In fact the Committee, this year,

has advised boat owners that if they are considering upgrading to

a larger boat the Club cannot guarantee that a suitable berth will

be available.

The Committee assesses applications for berthing based on

reported past and proposed use of the boat. Applicants are now

required to complete a form that details their past and proposed

usage of the boat.

Due to the pressure of boats on the waiting list, the Committee

and Marina staff endeavour to ensure that those who have been

granted marina licenses will continue to maintain the use of their

boats as was agreed at the time of occupancy of the berth. In a

nutshell, if the marina occupier is simply using the berth as a

parking lot for their boat, then the Committee will seek to have

that boat removed from the marina.

The marina has been run very efficiently throughout the year 

and this has been achieved again through the excellent and

tireless efforts of our dockmaster, Scott Finsten and marina

administrator, Frank Bergmann.Well done and my thanks to 

both of you.

In May last year, Andy Payne was appointed operations supervisor

for the Club and both Scott and Frank are responsible to him.

Andy’s contribution to this area and diligence in his role has been

outstanding. Under his guidance the marina and site functions

have been streamlined and made significantly more efficient and

cohesive. Andy is also responsible for the design and

implementation of the Club’s obligations and responsibilities

under the NSW Occupational Health and Safety Act 2000.This is

an ongoing process that Andy has well in hand.

Last December the hardstand area of the Club was required for

the erection of a marquee for Rolex Sydney Hobart Yacht Race

purposes.We were fortunate to be able to relocate the

hardstand boats to the ex-Olympic site in Rushcutters Bay.The

area will be required again this year for an even greater period. A

meeting was recently held with the hardstand occupants and

planning has already started for the smooth transferal of their

boats during the required period.The Club will continue to liaise

with the hardstand occupants on all movements.

Planning continues in regard to the use of the slipway area.The

Committee hopes to be able to present a proposal for this area to

the Board, and then to the members, during the next financial year.

Our start boat, tenders and chase boats are all in excellent

condition. Andy and Scott ensure that all routine maintenance is

carried out correctly and in a timely manner.

Building and site maintenance is being carried out as and when

required.The 24 hour access toilet and shower was given a

spruce up during the year.The facility is certainly now lighter,

brighter and easier to clean.The hardstand lift crane recently

underwent a major refurbishment which included improvements

to maintenance systems. No other major area of building

rectification/repair has been identified this year.

I would like to again thank Andy Payne, Scott Finsten and Frank

Bergmann for their commitment to the smooth and efficient

functioning of the marina. I would also like to thank my fellow

Committee members, Director Garry Linacre, Director Rod

Skellet, Director Les Goodridge,Tony Hearder, Karl Stechmann

and Ed McCarthy for their valued assistance and support during

the year.

Marina & Site Committee Repor t
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Chairman Michael Cranitch – Director

2003 – 2004 has been a busy and productive year for the

Member Services Committee. Liaison continues with L eat

catering to ensure that they remain responsive to Members’

needs. This has resulted in changes being made more recently to

the menu in the restaurant to the effect that no main course is

now in excess of $30.The quality, however, has remained.The

effect of the reduction in price is already being seen in increased

patronage of the Blue Water Grille and members are urged to

utilise this facility.The pricing compares extremely favourably with

other similar venues in the Eastern Suburbs. Committee Member

and Director Graham Swan has reviewed similar establishments

and the Blue Water Grille is rated superior to most.

During the year the Committee reviewed the dress code in

various parts of the Club with a view to providing uniformity.  

 Scott McEwen on behalf of the Member Services

Committee has produced a revised dress code for all areas of the

Club, with the emphasis being placed upon making the dress

code more easily understood and enforceable.

After a period of crisis, the Breakfast Club resumed its catering

for the BMW Sydney Winter Series, and regularly caters for

approximately 250 breakfasts every Sunday morning. Its

continued functioning is due to the significant efforts made by the

volunteers who run it, and their activities result in additional funds

being available for member services which might otherwise not

be included within the ordinary budget of the Club. I wish to

thank the volunteers who have run this very successful operation

on behalf of the Club for over twenty years.

Matt Allen, on behalf of the Member Services Committee keeps

a close eye on the wine lists at the Club. It is anticipated that

during the forthcoming months a proper bottle shop facility will

be established in the Sydney Hobart Bar area so that Members

may avail themselves of the keen bargains sourced by our

beverage staff.

The Badge Draw continues to prove popular on Thursday

evenings, thanks to the staunch support of our sponsors.

Gold Sponsors

Andrew Short Marine

Beneteau Vicsail

EastSail

Flagship Charters

Hood Sailmakers

Maurice Drent Boating Services

Noakes Boatyard

Pacific Sailing School

Point Marine Services

Premier Boat Trimming

Riviera Sales Sydney

Steve Jarvin Motors

Silver Sponsors

Southcorp

Web Central

Bronze Sponsors

Inner Circle Rum

Lyons Yacht Designers

Mortgage Force

Mariner Boating

Nanni Diesel

Sail Odyssey

www.getaway-sailing.com 

Finally, I wish to thank all the hard working members of the

Committee who have each contributed significantly to the

running of the Club and have provided enormous input to relieve

me personally of some of the responsibilities associated with this

Committee.The Committee looks forward to being of service to

the members in the forthcoming year.

Member Services Committee Repor t
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Chairman Rod Skellet – Director

The Archives Committee has made solid progress over the past

12 months on our major project, the history of the CYCA.That

said it was a year of pitfalls and change, which no doubt tested

the patience of not only the Committee members but also the

officers of the Club.

In June 2003, our then designated author and CYCA Club member

David Colfelt informed the Club that he was unable to continue

on the project due to medical reasons.This was a great loss as

David was very committed to the task and had completed a 

huge volume of research work in preparation for the drafting 

of the manuscript.

Our Committee then went to work on appointing a new author

and we were fortunate that probably Australia’s best known

yachting journalist and CYCA member Bob Ross was interested

in the job. Bob having recently handed over the reigns of

Australian Sailing to Vanessa Dudley, now had the time to devote

his attention to our Club’s history.To date the manuscript is now

20% complete and we are envisaging that the work will be

completed by April 2005, all going well.

The negotiations in relation to the publishing of the book are yet

to be finalised so the final delivery date for the complete history

is still to be determined. Our intention is to have the book out in

circulation by September 2005, well before the lead up to the

December racing period.

Aside from the book, our team is working on a portable display

highlighting the significant events surrounding the last 59 years 

of the Hobart Race.The intention is to provide an opportunity

for members and guests visiting the CYCA prior to the 60th

Rolex Sydney Hobart Yacht Race, a snapshot of what has made

the race the great sporting tradition that it is. Following the start

on Boxing Day, this display will be packed up and shipped to

Hobart for the arrival of the yachts off Battery Point and for 

the enjoyment of our Tasmanian hosts and spectators.

Finally, the Club has been fortunate to have purchased a

complete set of Seacraft and Modern Boating magazines for a

very modest price.These magazines are a very valuable and an

interesting asset that will certainly bolster the Club’s archival

resource base.

On that note, I would like to thank my fellow Committee

members for the contribution throughout the past year and

hopefully by this time next year we will be very close to presenting

the final manuscript on the CYCA history to the membership.

Archives Committee Repor t
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President Gail Lewis – Bearman

To celebrate the Associate Committee’s 40th anniversary, our first

function for the year was a reunion luncheon for past and present

Committee members. It was an opportunity to reminisce with

old friends and to welcome Margaret Psaltis, the first President of

the Associates Committee and two other Committee members,

Jeannette York and Ruth Hill.

Halloween Night

Our Halloween Party was a lot of fun and enjoyed by young and

old alike. Guests who came in Halloween dress danced to the

jukebox and were entertained by a professional magician.The

Morna and Freya rooms were appropriately decorated including

pumpkin lanterns and silken spider webs.

Parade of Sail

In July we held our 10th Annual Parade of Sail and Blessing of the

Fleet. A record fleet of 30 classic yachts, all 25 years or more,

competed for the ‘Shipshape and Bristol Fashion Award’.The

winning yacht was Ian Kortlang’s Antara, with David Champtaloup’s

Caprice of Huon and Alan Stanton’s Samiel sharing second place.

Following the Parade, 180 skippers, crewmembers and guests

joined us for lunch in the Freya and Morna Rooms.Thanks to

Michael York who once again organised the Sydney Heritage

Fleet’s magnificent Edwardian Schooner Boomerang as our official

start vessel and also to the judges, the starter, the Chaplain and

Jeannette York who co-ordinated the days events.

Melbourne Cup Champagne Luncheon

Our Melbourne Cup luncheon was a great success and seating

for 166 members and their friends was to capacity. Guests were

entertained with hat and fashion awards, door prizes,

competitions, sweeps and a monster raffle. In all, we provided

over 120 prizes and our appreciation goes to those Club

members and companies who so kindly donated quality prizes.

Thanks to Shaaron Walsh and Margaret Keelty who assisted me

on the day and to our sub-committee for their help.

Children’s Christmas Party

Seventy children attended the Christmas Party and each child

received an individually selected present from Santa.The children

were entertained with a floor show, face painting, organised

games and helium balloons.Thanks to Eve Ross who arranged the 

hot and cold party food, Diana Hawley our photographer and

Les Cosgrove who appeared in his seasonal ‘red suit’.

Christmas Hamper
Once again we were pleased with the results of our gourmet
Christmas hamper.This is one way we can accrue additional
revenue to support our donations.

Donations
Each year we select an outside charity to which we make a monitory
donation.This year we chose the Breast Cancer Foundation and a
$500 cheque was presented to them.A smaller donation of $100
was made to St.Vincents Hospital’s Heart & Lung Foundation.

Salsa Dinner & Presentation Night
Our theme nights are always popular and in May, our ‘Hot Latin Salsa
Night’ was complete with a South American menu, professional Salsa
dancers and Salsa music and guests who dressed for the occasion.

We took this opportunity to present the Sheila Patrick Memorial
Trophy, plus individual medallions, to the latest two recipients.
Congratulations to Sally Gordon and Felicity Nelson who both
competed in their 10th Sydney Hobart Yacht Race in 2003.This now
brings the number of women who have achieved this goal to ten.

Defibrillators
At a total cost of $7,000, our Committee purchased two

defibrillators which will be available in case of an emergency.These

little machines, one of which will remain on the Club premises and

the other on the Starter’s vessel, could mean the difference

between life and death in the event of a cardiac arrest. Commodore

Messenger accepted the defibrillators on behalf of Club Members.

In September 2003 we were saddened by the passing of long

time Committee member Lorna Murray.

I would like to extend my thanks to the Committee Members for

contributing their time and effort over the year. Members being:

Shaaron Walsh, Cathie Mulherin, Pam Neate, Margaret Keelty,

Jeannette York, Aurian Bird, Elizabeth Carpenter, Eve Ross, Diana

Hawley, Pamela Brinsmead, Pamela Emerson, Lee Ratcliff and

Marie-Lou Wolfensberger.

On behalf of the Committee, I wish to thank the Commodore,

Board and CYCA staff for their assistance and co-operation

throughout the past year.

Associates Committee Repor t
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The Directors present their report together with the financial report of the Cruising Yacht Club of Australia (“the Company”) for the year

ended 31 March 2004 and the auditor’s report thereon.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company at any time during or since the end of the financial year are:

Name and qualifications Age Experience and special responsibilities

Mr John C Messenger 61 Director since June 1996 

Non-executive Director Managing Director Marinassess,

Commodore Chairman, Board of Directors

Owner – Utopia

Mr Geoffrey R Lavis 57 Director since July 1999

B.Comm (Acctng) Managing Director, Lavis Corp Pty Ltd, Franchisee, Auto One

Non-executive Director Chairman, Marina and Site Committee

Vice Commodore Member, Sailing Committee,

Owner – UBS Wild Thing Member Disciplinary Committee

Mr Roger J Hickman 50 Director since June 1996

Master Class I Application Software Consultant 

Non-executive Director Chairman, Sailing Committee

Rear Commodore Member,YNSW Offshore Committee

Owner – Wild Oats Member,YNSW Board

Member, Rolex Sydney Hobart Yacht Race Committee

Directors’ Repor t
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Directors (continued)

Name and qualifications Age Experience and special responsibilities

Mr Martin R James 47 Director since July 1998

B.Juris (Hons), LLB (Hons) Partner, Mallesons Stephen Jaques

Rear Commodore

 Chairman, Audit, Planning and Risk CommitteeNon-executive Director

 Chairman, CYCA SOLAS Limited the trustee of CYCA Sydney Hobart Yacht

Owner – Infinity III Race Safety of Life at Sea Trusts 

Member,YA Insurance Working Party

Chairman, Rolex Sydney Hobart Yacht Race Committee

Chairman, Disciplinary Committee

Mr Alan Green 57 Director since June 1996

B.Econ., M.Comm.(Econ) Managing Director, International Technology Group Pty Ltd

Non-executive Director Director,Trilateral Pty Ltd

Treasurer Member, Audit, Planning and Risk Committee

Owner – Tonic Director of CYCA SOLAS Limited the trustee of CYCA Sydney Hobart Yacht Race 

Safety of Life at Sea Trusts

Mr Matthew C Allen 41 Director since July 2002

B.Bus Former Regional Chief Executive Officer UBS (Japan)

Non-executive Director Executive Chairman Halcycon Pty Limited

Owner – Ichi Ban Chairman,Training and Development Commitee

Member, Member Services Committee

Member, Audit, Planning and Risk Committee

Member, Rolex Sydney Hobart Yacht Race Committee

Mr Michael Cranitch 59 Director since July 2000

LLB, SC Senior Counsel NSW Bar

Non-executive Director Chairman, Member Services Committee

Owner – Broomstick Member, Audit, Planning and Risk Committee

Member, Disciplinary Committee

Mr Leslie W Goodridge 49 Director since July 2003

B Elec.Eng Commander RANR

Non-executive Director Marketing Director Owen International Pty Limited

Owner – Erica J Member, Marina and Site Committee

Member, Rolex Sydney Hobart Yacht Race Committee

Mr Garry Linacre 51 Director from June 1986 to June 1988 and since July 2000

Non-executive Director General Manager, Navionics Australia

Owner – Flicka Member, Member Services Committee

Member,Training and Development Committee

Member, Marina and Site Committee

Mr Rod Skellet 41 Director since July 1997

B.Sci (Agr), MSDIA Vice President, Equity Derivatives, Deutsche Bank of Australia

Non-executive Director Chairman, Archives Committee

Owner – Krakatoa Member, Marina and Site Committee

Member, Sailing Committee
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Directors (continued)

Name and qualifications Age Experience and special responsibilities

Mr Graham R Swan 46 Director since July 2003

B.Econ, CA, MAICD Executive Chairman Rothsay Consulting Services Pty Limited

Non-executive Director Director numerous proprietary companies

Member, Member Services Committee

Mr Geoffrey D Cropley 44 Director since July 1997 to July 2003

Non-executive Director Managing Director, Speeedfins Australia Pty Limited

Former Member, Member Services Committee

Mr Donald M Telford 54 Director since July 1999 to July 2003

Non-executive Director Divisional Director,Toll Group

Former Chairman,Training and Development Committee

Former Member, Sailing Committee

Director of CYCA SOLAS Limited the trustee of CYCA Sydney Hobart Yacht Race 

Safety of Life at Sea Trusts

Directors’ Meetings

The number of directors’ meetings (including meetings of committees of directors) and number of meetings attended by each of the

directors of the Company during the financial year are:

BOARD MEETINGS OTHER MEETINGS

Director Number of  Number of   Number of  Number of  

Meetings Attended Meetings Held* Meetings Attended Meetings Held*

J C Messenger 11 13                                        -                                         -

G R Lavis 13 13 15 17

R J Hickman 8 13 11 11

M R James 13 13 7 7

A Green 11 13 4 4

M C Allen 11 13 18 20

M Cranitch 10 13 12 13

L Goodridge 8 9 8 9

G Linacre 12 13 13 15

R Skellet 8 13 13 19

G Swan 7 9 4 7

G D Cropley 3 4 1 2

D M Telford 2 4 4 4

*Number of meetings held during the time the director held office during the year.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Principal activities

The principal activities of the Company during the course of the

financial year were to promote participation in yachting including

the sport of sailing and to provide ocean racing facilities, training

and other yachting facilities and competition for its members.

There were no significant changes in the nature of the activities of

the Company during the year.

Membership

The Company is a company limited by guarantee and without

share capital. The number of members as at 31 March 2004 and

the comparison with last year is as follows:

2004 2003

Number of members 2,573 2,566

Review and results of operations

The result from ordinary activities before tax for the year

amounted to a net profit of $186,603 compared with a net profit

of $395,123 for the prior year. This resulted after charging

$642,538 (2003: $547,604) for depreciation and amortisation.

The decrease in net profit is predominantly as a result of

increased depreciation of assets (including in relation to the

Company’s websites) and increased property expenditure; in

particular costs associated with the current caterer’s arrangement

and property expenses. The effect of the increase in expenses

has been offset by the reversal of a prior year accrual for

superannuation.

Dividends

The Company is a non-profit organisation and is prevented by its

constitution from paying dividends.

State of affairs

In the opinion of the directors there were no significant changes

in the state of affairs of the Company that occurred during the

financial year under review.

Environmental regulation

The Company’s operations are subject to various environmental

regulations under both Commonwealth and State legislation.

The Board believes that the Company has adequate systems in

place for the management of its environmental requirements and

is not aware of any breach of those environmental requirements

as they apply to the Company.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Events subsequent to reporting date

There has not arisen in the interval between the end of the

financial year and the date of this report any item, transaction or

event of a material or unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the

directors of the Company to affect significantly the operations of

the Company, the results of those operations, or the state of

affairs of the Company, in future financial years.

Likely developments

The directors do not anticipate any particular development in the

operations of the Company which will affect the results in

subsequent years.

Director and employee overseas travel

The following employees have travelled overseas in their capacity

as an employee during the year ended 31 March 2004;

• Jennifer Bonnitcha travelled to New Zealand as the coach of

the Company team competing in the RNZYS International

Youth Match Racing Series.The Company paid for costs relating

to airfares totalling $585. In addition to these costs the

employee was paid wages for the period of travel.

• Benjamin Croucher travelled to the United Kingdom as the coach

of and participant in the Company team competing at Cowes

Week.The Company paid for costs relating to airfares, insurance

and accommodation totalling $2,487. In addition to these costs

the employee was paid wages for the period of travel.

No director has travelled overseas in their capacity as a director

during the year ended 31 March 2004.

Employee remuneration

The number of employees of the Company whose income is

greater than $100,000, including fringe benefits, such as the use of

a motor vehicle provided by a sponsor, from the Company or any

related party falls within the following bands:

2004 2003

$190,000 – $200,000 1 1

Total income paid or payable or otherwise available to all

employees of the Company as reported alongside each

successive band noted above

2004 2003

$198,686 $194,951

Indemnification and insurance of officers

The Company has provided for and paid premiums during the year

for directors and officers liability insurance. Each director has

contributed $92 of premium costs. The insurance is in respect of

legal liability for damages and legal costs to a maximum of

$10,000,000 arising from claims made by reason of any omissions or

acts (other than dishonesty) by them, whilst acting in their individual

or collective capacity as directors or officers of the Company.

The insurance premiums relate to:

• costs and expenses incurred by the relevant officers in

defending proceedings, whether civil or criminal whatever 

their outcome; and

• other liabilities that may arise from their position, with 

the exception of conduct involving a wilful breach of duty 

or improper use of information or position to gain a 

personal advantage.

Dated at Sydney this 27th day of May, 2004.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the directors:

J C Messenger A Green

Commodore Treasurer
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Scope

We have audited the financial report of the Cruising Yacht Club

of Australia (“the Company”) for the financial year ended 31

March 2004 consisting of the statement of financial performance,

statement of financial position, statement of cash flows,

accompanying notes, and the directors’ declaration set out on

pages 23 to 42.The Company’s directors are responsible for the

financial report.We have conducted an independent audit of this

financial report in order to express an opinion on it to the

members of the Company.

Our audit has been conducted in accordance with Australian

Auditing Standards to provide reasonable assurance whether the

financial report is free of material misstatement. Our procedures

included examination, on a test basis, of evidence supporting the

amounts and other disclosures in the financial report, and the

evaluation of accounting policies and significant accounting

estimates.These procedures have been undertaken to form an

opinion whether, in all material respects, the financial report is

presented fairly in accordance with Accounting Standards and

other mandatory professional reporting requirements in Australia

and statutory requirements so as to present a view which is

consistent with our understanding of the Company’s financial

position, and performance as represented by the results of its

operations and its cash flows.

The audit opinion expressed in this report has been formed on

the above basis.

Audit opinion

In our opinion, the financial report of the Cruising Yacht Club of

Australia is in accordance with:

a) the Corporations Act 2001, including:

i) giving a true and fair view of the Company’s financial

position as at 31 March 2004 and of its performance for

the year ended on that date; and

ii) complying with Accounting Standards in Australia and the

Corporations Regulations 2001; and

b) other mandatory professional reporting requirements in Australia.

KPMG

John O’Donnell

Partner

Sydney 2004

Independent Audit Repor t
to the members of the Cruising Yacht Club of Australia
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In the opinion of the directors of the Cruising Yacht Club of

Australia (“the Company”):

(a) the financial statements and notes, set out on pages 24 to 42,

are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

(i) giving a true and fair view of the financial position of the

Company as at 31 March 2004 and of its performance, as

represented by the results of its operations and its cash

flows, for the year ended on that date; and

(ii) complying with Accounting Standards in Australia and the

Corporations Regulations 2001; and

(b) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be

able to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable.

Dated at Sydney this 27th day of May, 2004.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the directors:

J C Messenger A Green

Commodore Treasurer

Directors’ Declaration
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Note 2004 2003

$ $ 

Revenue from sale of goods 2,857,827 2,854,497

Revenue from rendering of services 4,641,148 4,654,846

Other revenue from ordinary activities 213,643 151,896

Total revenue from ordinary activities 3 7,712,618 7,661,239

Cost of goods sold 1,414,121 1,310,734

Employee and employment expenses 1,904,514 2,029,735

Entertainment and members costs 239,619 193,060

Sailing event costs 720,324 798,309

Property expenses 1,094,238 970,719

Insurance 206,024 196,877

Repairs and maintenance 191,058 216,047

Temporary services 238,569 91,756

Other expenses from ordinary activities 544,441 544,902

6,552,908 6,352,139

Earnings before borrowing costs, tax, depreciation and amortisation 1,159,710 1,309,100

Depreciation and amortisation 4 642,538 547,604

Borrowing costs 4 330,569 366,373

Profit from ordinary activities before related income tax expense 186,603 395,123

Income tax expense relating to ordinary activities 1(e) - -

Net profit 14 186,603 395,123

The statement of financial performance is to be read in conjunction with the 

notes to the financial statements set out on pages 27 to 42.

Statement of Financial Performance
for the year ended 31 March 2004
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Note 2004 2003

$ $ 

Current assets

Cash assets 67,665 116,514

Receivables 6 435,972 190,985

Inventories 7 109,908 146,979

Other 8 131,154 13,963

Total current assets 744,699 468,441

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 9 8,849,425 9,325,685

Total non-current assets 8,849,425 9,325,685

Total assets 9,594,124 9,794,126

Current liabilities

Payables 10 889,214 962,329

Interest bearing liabilities 11 339,218 287,570

Provisions 12 125,557 120,612

Other 13 98,668 108,283

Total current liabilities 1,452,657 1,478,794

Non-current liabilities

Interest bearing liabilities 11 3,391,708 3,757,281

Provisions 12 112,156 109,176

Other 13 260,114 257,989

Total non-current liabilities 3,763,978 4,124,446

Total liabilities 5,216,635 5,603,240

Net assets 4,377,489 4,190,886

Members’ funds

Retained profits 14 4,377,489 4,190,886

Total members’ funds 4,377,489 4,190,886

The statement of financial position is to be read in conjunction with the 

notes to the financial statements set out on pages 27 to 42.

Statement of Financial Position
for the year ended 31 March 2004
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Note 2004 2003

$ $ 

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash receipts in the course of operations 8,217,904 8,514,232

Cash payments in the course of operations (7,425,027) (7,127,529)

Interest received 1,815 7,742

Borrowing costs paid (330,569) (366,373)

Net cash provided by operating activities 19(b) 464,123 1,028,072

Cash flows from investing activities

Proceeds on disposal of non-current assets 1,759 51,363

Payments for property, plant and equipment (183,306) (736,777)

Net cash used in investing activities (181,547) (685,414)

Cash flows from financing activities

Repayment of borrowings (341,611) (342,740)

Net cash used in financing activities (341,611) (342,740)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash held (59,035) (82)

Cash at the beginning of the financial year 116,514 116,596

Cash at the end of the financial year 19(a) 57,479 116,514

The statement of cash flows is to be read in conjunction with the 

notes to the financial statements set out on pages 27 to 42.

Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 31 March 2004
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1. Statement of significant accounting policies

The significant policies which have been adopted in the

preparation of this financial report are:

(a) Basis of preparation

The financial report is a general purpose financial report which

has been prepared in accordance with Accounting Standards,

Urgent Issues Group Consensus Views, other authoritative

pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board

and the Corporations Act 2001.

It has been prepared on the basis of historical costs and except

where stated, does not take into account changing money values

or the fair value of assets.

The accounting policies are consistent with those of the previous

year, other than as disclosed in Note 2.

(b) Revenue recognition – Note 3

Revenues are recognised at fair value of the consideration

received net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST)

payable to the taxation authority. Exchanges of goods or services

of the same nature and value without any cash consideration are

recognised as revenues.

Sale of goods revenue

House revenue

House revenue comprises revenue earned from the provision of

food, beverage and clothing sales to members and other patrons

of the club. Revenue is recognised when the goods and services

are provided.

Rendering of services revenue

Subscriptions

Subscription fees are taken into account on an accruals basis and

the portion relating to the ensuing year is transferred to

subscriptions in advance.

Yard and marina

Yard and marina revenue consists of casual and permanent

berthing fees, hardstand rentals, locker rentals, slipping fees, tender

fees and boat repairs provided to members and other patrons of

the Club. Yard and marina revenue is recognised when the goods

or services are provided.

Sailing revenue

Sailing revenue consists of ferry charter fees, race entry fees and

other associated income. Sailing revenue is recognised when the

goods or services are provided for all revenue except

sponsorship which is recognised as it accrues.

Other revenue from ordinary activities

Interest revenue

Interest revenue is recognised as it accrues, taking into account

the effective yield on the financial asset.

Donations and grants received

Revenue from donations and grants consists of donations

received by the Youth Sailing Academy, and grants from the

Australian Sports Foundation.

Sale of non-current assets

The gross proceeds of non-current asset sales are included as

revenue at the date control of the asset passes to the buyer,

usually when an unconditional contract of sale is signed.

The gain or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference

between the carrying amount of the asset at the time of disposal

and the net proceeds on disposal (including incidental costs).

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2004
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1. Statement of significant accounting 

policies (continued)

(c) Goods and services tax

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount

of goods and services tax (GST), except where the amount of

GST incurred is not recoverable from the taxation authority.

In these circumstances the GST is recognised as part of the cost

of acquisition of the asset or as part of an item of the expense.

Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of 

GST included.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the

taxation authority is included as a current asset or liability in the

statement of financial position.

Cash flows are included in the statement of cash flows on a gross

basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing

and financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to,

the taxation authority are classified as operating cash flows.

(d) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs include interest, amortisation of discounts or

premiums relating to borrowings, amortisation of ancillary costs

incurred in connection with arrangement of borrowings and lease

finance charges. Ancillary costs incurred in connection with the

arrangement of borrowings are capitalised and amortised over

the life of the borrowings.

Borrowing costs are expensed as incurred unless they relate to

qualifying assets. Qualifying assets are assets which take more

than 12 months to get ready for their intended use or sale. In

these circumstances, borrowing costs are capitalised to the cost

of the assets. Where funds are borrowed specifically for the

acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset, the

amount of borrowing costs capitalised is those incurred in

relation to that borrowing, net of any interest earned on those

borrowings. Where funds are borrowed generally, borrowing

costs are capitalised using a weighted average capitalisation rate.

(e) Taxation

No provision has been made for income tax as the Company is

exempt under Section 50-45 of the Income Tax Assessment Act

(1997), provided it continues as a sporting club predominantly

encouraging and promoting the sport of yachting, boating, cruising for

pleasure and the building and sailing of yachts and boats. Accordingly

tax effect accounting has not been adopted by the Company.

(f) Acquisition of assets

All assets acquired including property, plant and equipment are

initially recorded at their cost of acquisition at the date of

acquisition, being the fair value of the consideration provided plus

incidental costs directly attributable to the acquisition.

Expenditure is only recognised as an asset when the Company

controls future economic benefits as a result of the costs

incurred, that are probable and can be measured reliably. Costs

attributable to feasibility and alternative approach assessments are

expensed as incurred.

Subsequent additional costs

Costs incurred on assets subsequent to initial acquisition are

capitalised when it is probable that future economic benefits in

excess of the originally assessed performance of the asset will

flow to the Company in future years otherwise they are

expensed as incurred.

(g) Revisions of accounting estimates

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively in

current and future periods only.

(h) Receivables – Note 6

The collectability of debts is assessed at reporting date and

specific provision is made for any doubtful accounts.

Trade debtors

Debtors are generally settled within 60 days and are carried at

amounts due.

(i) Inventories – Note 7

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and/or net 

realisable value.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2004 (continued)
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1. Statement of significant accounting 

policies (continued)

( j) Leased assets

Leases under which the Company assumes substantially all the

risks and benefits of ownership are classified as finance leases.

Other leases are classified as operating leases.

Operating leases

Payments made under operating leases are expensed on a

straight line basis over the term of the lease, except where an

alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits

to be derived from the leased property.

(k) Recoverable amount of non-current assets

valued on cost basis

The carrying amounts of non-current assets valued on the cost

basis are reviewed to determine whether they are in excess of

their recoverable amount at reporting date. If the carrying

amount of a non-current asset exceeds the recoverable amount,

the asset is written down to the lower amount.The write-down

is expensed in the reporting period in which it occurs.

Current valuations for leasehold improvements valued on the

cost basis are carried out at least once every three years.

Where a group of assets working together supports the

generation of cash inflows, the recoverable amount is assessed in

relation to that group of assets.

In assessing recoverable amounts of non-current assets the relevant

cash flows have not been discounted to their present value.

(l) Depreciation and amortisation

Complex assets

The components of major assets that have materially different

useful lives, are effectively accounted for as separate assets, and

are separately depreciated.

Useful lives

All non-current assets have limited useful lives and are

depreciated/amortised using the straight line method over their

estimated useful lives, taking into account estimated residual

values, with the exception of freehold land.

Assets are depreciated or amortised from the date of acquisition.

Depreciation and amortisation rates and methods are reviewed

annually for appropriateness.When changes are made,

adjustments are reflected prospectively in current and future

periods only.

The depreciation/amortisation rates used for each class of asset

are as follows:

2004 2003

Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold improvements 3% 3%

Yard and marinas 13% 13%

Boats 13% to 50% 13% to 50%

Plant and equipment 13% to 50% 13% to 50%

(m) Payables – Note 10

Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for

goods or services received, whether or not billed to the company.

Trade accounts payable are normally settled within 60 days.

(n) Interest-bearing liabilities – Note 11

Loans are recognised at their principal amount, subject to set off

arrangements. Interest expense is accrued at the contracted rate

and included in “Other creditors and accruals”.

(o) Employee benefits – Note 12

Wages, salaries, annual leave, sick leave and non-monetary benefits

Liabilities for employee benefits for wages, salaries, annual leave and

sick leave expected to be settled within 12 months of the year-end

represent present obligations resulting from employees’ services

provided at the reporting date, calculated at undiscounted amounts

based on remuneration wage and salary rates that the Company

expects to pay as at reporting date including related on-costs.

Non-accumulating non-monetary benefits such as the use of a

motor vehicle, are expensed on the net marginal cost to the

Company as the benefits are taken by employees.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2004 (continued)
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1. Statement of significant accounting 

policies (continued)

(o) Employee benefits – Note 12 (continued)

Long service leave

The provision for employee benefits to long service leave

represents the present value of the estimated future cash

outflows to be made resulting from employees’ services provided

to reporting date.

Provision for employees with less than 10 years’ service has been

allocated to non-current liabilities.

The provision is calculated using expected future increases in

wage and salary rates including related on-costs and expected

settlement dates based on turnover history and is discounted

using the rates attaching to national government bonds at

reporting date which most closely match the terms of maturity 

of the related liabilities.The unwinding of the discount is treated

as long service leave expense.

Superannuation plan

The Company contributes to several defined contribution

superannuation plans. Contributions are recognised as an expense

as they are made. Further information is set out in Note 20.

(p) Marina security deposits held – Note 13

Marina berth holders are required to pay a refundable security

deposit to the Company equivalent to three months berthing

fees at the time of acquisition of the berth.

(q) Floating rate notes – Note 11

Floating rate notes are carried on the statement of financial

position at their principal amount. Interest expense is accrued at

the contracted rate and included in accruals.

2. Changes in accounting policies

(a) Employee benefits – Note 20

The Company has applied the revised AASB 1028 Employee

Benefits for the first time from 1 April 2003.

The liability for wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave is

now calculated using the remuneration rates the Company

expects to pay as at each reporting date, not wages and salary

rates current at reporting date.

There was no material change in the result for the year as a

result of the adoption of AASB 1028.

(b) Revision of accounting estimates

At the commencement of the year, the Company revised its

treatment of the websites previously capitalised as ‘Plant and

equipment’ within non-current assets. As a result, the website has

been fully depreciated in the current financial year.This has

resulted in depreciation of $69,784 being expensed through the

statement of financial performance. All further costs incurred in

the 2004 year with respect to the website have been expensed

to the statement of financial performance.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2004 (continued)
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Note 2004 2003

$ $ 

3. Revenue from ordinary activities

Sale of goods revenue from operating activities 2,857,827 2,854,497

Rendering of services revenue from operating activities 4,641,148 4654,846

Other revenues
From operating activities
Interest: Other parties 1,815 7,742

Donations and grants received 120,069 92,791

From outside operating activities
Gross proceeds from sale of non-current assets 1,759 51,363

Insurance proceeds 90,000 -

Total other revenues 231,643 151,896

Total revenue from ordinary activities 7,712,618 7,661,239

4. Profit from ordinary activities before income tax expense

(a) Profit from ordinary activities before income tax expense has 
been arrived at after charging/(crediting) the following items:

Borrowing costs:
Related parties 25,488 27,046
Other parties 97,474 123,559
Hire purchase charges 207,607 215,768

330,569 366,373

Operating lease rental expenses:
Minimum lease payments 149,916 180,756

Depreciation of:
Yard and marinas 127,286 127,836

Boats 42,240 22,454

Plant and equipment 243,159 168,542

Amortisation of:
Leasehold improvements 229,853 228,772

Total depreciation and amortisation 642,538 547,604

Net expense from movements in provision for:
Employee benefits 7,925 27,542

Obsolescence of stock 17,500 -

Net (gain)/loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 15,269 (13,077)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2004 (continued)
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Note 2004 2003

$ $ 

5. Auditor’s remuneration

Audit services:

Auditors of the company

KPMG Australia

Audit and review of the financial reports 22,800 20,000

Other services:

Auditors of the company

KPMG Australia

Other assurance services 5,250 5,250

Taxation services 750 750

6. Receivables

Trade debtors 179,176 151,988

Less: Provision for doubtful trade debtors (7,500) (7,500)

171,676 144,488

Other debtors 264,296 46,497

435,972 190,985

7. Inventories

Finished goods – at cost 127,408 146,979

Less: Provision for obsolescence (17,500) -

109,908 146,979

8. Other assets

Current

Prepayments 131,154 13,963

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2004 (continued)
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Note 2004 2003

$ $ 

9. Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold improvements

At cost 6,892,891 6,897,277

Accumulated amortisation (903,141) (684,691)

5,989,750 6,212,586

Yard and marinas

At cost 2,655,701 2,678,259

Accumulated amortisation (672,818) (568,090)

1,982,883 2,110,169

Boats

At cost 408,133 350,994

Accumulated amortisation (111,852) (69,612)

296,281 281,382

Plant and equipment 

At cost 1,260,384 1,213,032

Accumulated amortisation (679,873) (491,484)

580,511 721,548

Total property, plant and equipment net book value 8,849,425 9,325,685

Refer to Note 11 for details of security over property, plant and equipment.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2004 (continued)
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Note 2004 2003

$ $

9. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Reconciliations

Reconciliations of the carrying amounts for each class of property,

plant and equipment are set out below:

Leasehold improvements
Carrying amount at beginning of year 6,212,586 6,420,053
Additions 18,726 22,402
Disposals (11,709) (1,097)
Amortisation (229,853) (228,772)

Carrying amount at end of year 5,989,750 6,212,586

Yard and marinas
Carrying amount at beginning of year 2,110,169 2,229,227
Additions - 9,667
Disposals - (889)
Depreciation (127,286) (127,836)

Carrying amount at end of year 1,982,883 2,110,169

Boats
Carrying amount at beginning of year 281,382 12,178
Additions 57,139 291,658
Depreciation (42,240) (22,454)

Carrying amount at end of year 296,281 281,382

Plant and equipment
Carrying amount at beginning of year 721,548 513,340
Additions 107,442 413,050
Disposals (5,320) (36,300)
Depreciation (243,159) (168,542)

Carrying amount at end of year 580,511 721,548

Valuation

The independent valuation of the company’s leasehold improvements 

was carried out as at April 2002 on the basis of an open market value for 

existing use resulted in a valuation of leasehold improvements of $9,000,000.

As leasehold improvements are recorded at cost the valuation has not 

been brought to account.

10. Payables

Trade creditors 208,664 259,104
Other creditors and accruals 680,550 703,225

889,214 962,329

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2004 (continued)
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Note 2004 2003

$ $

11. Interest bearing liabilities

Current

Bank overdraft 10,186 -

Hire purchase liabilities – secured 16 329,032 287,570

339,218 287,570

Non-current

Bank bill acceptance facility – secured 425,000 200,000

Hire purchase liabilities – secured 16 2,016,708 2,257,281

Floating rate notes – unsecured 950,000 1,300,000

3,391,708 3,757,281

The company has access to the following lines of credit:

Total facilities available:

Bank overdraft 100,000 100,000

Bill acceptance facility 700,000 1,000,000

800,000 1,100,000

Facilities utilised at reporting date:

Bank overdraft 10,186 -

Bill acceptance facility 425,000 200,000

435,186 200,000

Facilities not utilised at reporting date:

Bank overdraft 89,814 100,000

Bill acceptance facility 275,000 800,000

364,814 900,000

Bank overdraft

Interest on the bank overdraft is charged at prevailing market rates.

The interest rate for the overdraft as at 31 March 2004 is 9.45% (2003: 8.95%).

The bank overdraft and other facilities made available by the Company’s 

bankers are secured by registered first mortgages over all assets of 

the Company. The bank overdraft is payable on demand and is 

subject to annual review.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2004 (continued)
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11. Interest bearing liabilities (continued)

Floating rate notes

Cruising Yacht Club of Australia floating rate notes are unsecured liabilities 

with a term of up to three years. The loans bear interest, payable quarterly 

on the basis of the aggregate of the 90 day bank bill rate on the first 

working day of the quarter plus 2.3% per annum. The interest rate as 

at 31 March 2004 is 7.822% (2003: 7.073%).

Bill acceptance facility

The bill acceptance facility is available for the next two years. This facility 

was partially utilised as at the 2004 reporting date. The discount rate on 

the facility as at 31 March 2004 is 6.87% (2003: 6.11 %).

Note 2004 2003

$ $

12. Provisions

Current

Employee benefits 20 125,557 120,612

Non-current

Employee benefits 20 112,156 109,176

13. Other liabilities

Current

Income received in advance 98,668 108,283

Non-current

Marina security deposits held 260,114 257,989

14. Retained profits

Retained profits at beginning of year 4,190,886 3,795,763

Net profit 186,603 395,123

Retained profits at the end of the year 4,377,489 4,190,886

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2004 (continued)
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15. Additional financial instruments disclosure

The Company’s financial instruments and the policies associated with 

the risks of carrying these are summarised below:

a) Interest rate risk

The Company’s financial assets and liabilities are subject to interest rate 

risk. The Company does not use derivatives to minimise this risk and these 

will fluctuate in accordance with movements in the market interest rates.

The Company’s exposure to interest rate risk and the effective weighted 

average interest rate for classes of financial assets and financial liabilities 

is set out below:

2004

Financial assets

Cash assets 2.00 45,365 - - - 22,300 67,665

Receivables 6 - - - - - 435,972 435,972

- 45,365 - - - 458,272 503,637

Financial liabilities

Payables 10 - - - - - 884,214 884,214

Bank overdraft 9.45 10,186 - - - - 10,186

Floating rate notes 11 7.82 950,000 - - - - 950,000

Bank bill acceptance facility 11 6.87 425,000 - - - - 425,000

Hire purchase liabilities 11 9.00 - 329,032 2,016,708 - - 2,345,740

Employee benefits 12 5.30 237,713 - - - - 237,713

Marina security deposits 13 5.00 260,114 - - - - 260,114

1,883,013 329,032 2,016,708 - 884,214 5,112,967

Note Non 
interest
bearing

$

Total

$

Weighted
average

interest rate
%

Floating 
rate

$

Fixed
interest

maturing 
in 1 year 

or less
$

Fixed
interest

maturing in
1-5 years

$

Fixed
interest

maturing in
more than 

5 years
$

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2004 (continued)
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15. Additional financial instruments disclosure (continued)

a) Interest rate risk (continued)

2003

Financial assets

Cash assets 1.80 94,214 - - - 22,300 116,514

Receivables 6 - - - - - 190,985 190,985

- 94,214 - - - 213,285 307,499

Financial liabilities

Payables 10 - - - - - 962,329 962,329

Floating rate notes 11 7.07 1,300,000 - - - - 1,300,000

Bank bill acceptance facility 11 6.11 200,000 - - - - 200,000

Hire purchase liabilities 11 8.44 - 287,570 2,257,281 - - 2,544,851

Employee benefits 12 - - - - - 229,788 229,788

Marina security deposits 13 4.30 257,989 - - - - 257,989

- 1,757,989 287,570 2,257,281 - 1,192,117 5,494,957

b) Credit risk exposures

Credit risk represents the loss that would be recognised if 

counterparties failed to perform as contracted.

Recognised financial instruments

The credit risk on financial assets of the Company which have been 

recognised on the statement of financial position is the carrying amount,

net of any provision for doubtful debts.

The Company minimises concentrations of credit risk, undertaking 

transactions with a large number of patrons.

c) Net fair values of financial assets and liabilities

For all financial assets and liabilities the fair value approximates their 

carrying value. No financial assets and financial liabilities are readily 

traded on organised markets.

The aggregate fair values and carrying amount of financial assets and 

financial liabilities are disclosed in the statement of financial position 

and in the notes to the financial statements.

Note Non 
interest
bearing

$

Total

$

Weighted
average

interest rate
%

Floating 
rate

$

Fixed
interest

maturing 
in 1 year 

or less
$

Fixed
interest

maturing in
1-5 years

$

Fixed
interest

maturing in
more than 

5 years
$
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Note 2004 2003

$ $

16. Commitments

Capital expenditure commitments

Computer equipment

Within one year - 13,636

Non cancellable operating lease expense commitments

Future operating lease commitments not provided for in the financial 

statements and payable:

Within one year 289,016 265,722

One year or later and no later than five years 1,156,064 1,062,888

Later than five years 1,558,781 1,887,000

3,003,861 3,215,610

The Company leases property and water space for the Clubhouse and 

marina under operating leases expiring in 14 years and 8 years respectively.

Lease payments are adjusted periodically to market rates and are expected 

to significantly increase over the next 12 months after the completion of a review.

Hire purchase commitments

Hire purchase payments are payable as follows:

Within one year 515,627 493,322

One year or later and no later than five years 2,255,904 2,665,580

2,771,531 3,158,902

Less: Future hire purchase charges 425,791 614,051

2,345,740 2,544,851

Hire purchase liabilities provided for in the financial statements:

Current 11 329,032 287,570

Non-current 11 2,016,708 2,257,281

Total hire purchase liabilities 2,345,740 2,544,851

The Company entered into a sale and hire purchase back of the marina 

and other plant and equipment with terms expiring within 4 years.

The hire purchase is indirectly secured in part by a charge over the 

Company’s assets.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2004 (continued)
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Note 2004 2003

$ $

17. Contingent liabilities

Bank guarantees

The Company has given the following bank guarantees:

Waterways Authority 32,903 32,903

18. Segment reporting

The Company operates in one industry in Sydney, New South Wales 

the principal activity being that of a licensed yacht club.

19. Notes to the statement of cash flows

(a) Reconciliation of cash

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash includes cash 

on hand and at bank and short term deposits at call, net of outstanding 

bank overdrafts. Cash as at the end of the financial year as shown in 

the statement of cash flows is reconciled to the related items in the 

statement of financial position as follows:

Cash assets 67,665 116,514

Bank overdraft 11 (10,186) -

57,479 116,514

(b) Reconciliation of profit from ordinary activities after 

income tax to net cash provided by operating activities

Profit from ordinary activities after income tax 186,603 395,123

Add/(less) items classified as investing/financing activities:

(Profit)/loss on sale of non-current assets 15,269 (13,077)

Add/(less) non-cash items:

Depreciation and amortisation 642,538 547,604

Amounts set aside to provisions 25,425 27,542

Net cash provided by operating activities before change in assets and liabilities 869,835 957,192

Change in assets and liabilities during the financial year

(Increase)/decrease in receivables (244,987) 100,603

(Increase)/decrease in inventories 37,071 (53,028)

(Increase)/decrease in other assets (117,191) 2,532

Increase/(decrease) in payables (73,115) (25,143)

Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities (7,490) 45,916

Net cash provided by operating activities 464,123 1,028,072

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2004 (continued)
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Note 2004 2003

$  $  

20. Employee benefits

Aggregate liability for employee benefits, including on-costs:

Current 12 125,557 120,612

Non-current 12 112,156 109,176

237,713 229,788

2004 2003

No:  No:

Number of employees

Number of employees at year end 42 46

Superannuation plans

Contributions

The Company is under a legal obligation to contribute 9% of each 

employee’s base salary to a superannuation fund.

Details of contributions during the year are as follows:

Employer contributions to the plans 126,780 126,470

Employer contributions payable to the plans at reporting date 10,860 10,359

21. Directors remuneration

The directors did not receive any remuneration during the year,

or in the prior year.

Directors’ income

2004 2003

No:  No:

The number of directors of the Company whose income from the 

Company or any related party falls within the following bands:

$0 - $9,999 13 12

2004 2003

$  $  

Total income paid or payable or otherwise available to all directors 

of the Company $Nil $Nil

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2004 (continued)
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22. Related parties

Directors

The names of each person holding the position of director of the

Cruising Yacht Club of Australia during the financial year are

Messrs M C Allen, M Cranitch, G D Cropley, A Green,

L W Goodridge, R J Hickman, M R James, G R Lavis, G Linacre,

J C Messenger, R Skellet, G R Swan and D M Telford.

Mr G D Cropley and Mr D M Telford resigned as directors in 

July 2003.

Details of directors’ remuneration are set out in Note 21.

Apart from the details disclosed in this note, no director has

entered into a material contract with the Company since the end

of the previous financial year and there were no material

contracts involving directors’ interests subsisting at year end.

Directors’ transactions with the Company

From time to time directors of the Company may purchase

goods and services from the Company (e.g. food, drink, racing

entries, sailing equipment and marina berthing) or participate in

other club activities.These purchases and participations are on

the same terms and conditions as those available to any other

member of the Company.

Floating rate notes

Floating rate notes totalling $Nil (2003: $Nil) were issued by the

Company to directors or director related entities during the year.

The total amount repaid on the floating rate notes was $Nil

during 2004 (2003: $Nil) leaving a balance owing of $350,000 to

directors or director related entities at year end.

The floating rate notes were issued to F J Collins Pty Limited ATF

F J Collins Superannuation Fund and Lavis Corporation ATF Lavis

Superannuation Fund during 2001. Interest is paid on these notes

as detailed in Note 11.The total interest paid was $25,488 

(2004: $27,046).

The director related entities for the above related transactions

are as follows:

Director Director related entity

M R James F J Collins Pty Limited 

ATF F J Collins Superannuation Fund

G Lavis Lavis Corporation Pty Limited 

ATF Lavis Superannuation Fund

Other related parties

Joanna Cranitch, a relative of Michael Cranitch (director) has

provided professional services as band agent to the Company

during the year ended 31 March 2004.These services were

provided under normal commercial terms and conditions.The

costs associated with these services for the year ended 31 March

2004 is $29,000.

23. Company details

The Club is incorporated and domiciled in Australia as a company

limited by guarantee. In accordance with the Constitution of the

Company, every member of the Company undertakes to

contribute an amount limited to $2 per member in the event of

the winding up of the Company during the time that he is a

member or within one year thereafter. At 31 March 2004 there

were 2,573 members.

The principal place of business is New Beach Road, Darling Point,

New South Wales, Australia.

24. Trust fund

The Company is the sole member of CYCA SOLAS Limited, a

Company limited by guarantee which is the trustee of the CYCA

Sydney Hobart Yacht Race Safety of Life at Sea Trusts.The

administration of the CYCA Sydney Hobart Yacht Race Safety of

Life at Sea Trusts is under the control of the separate board of

CYCA SOLAS Limited.The trustee Company has a right to be

indemnified out of the assets of the trust to satisfy liabilities

properly incurred by the trustee. As at 31 March 2004 the

outstanding liabilities committed by the trustee on behalf of the

trust totalled $10,000 (2003: $30,000).The assets of the trust are

sufficient to meet this commitment. In the event that CYCA

SOLAS Limited is wound up and unable to repay all outstanding

debts, the liability of its members is limited to an amount of $10.

CYCA SOLAS Limited is a controlled entity of the Cruising Yacht

Club of Australia.The company acts as trustee for the CYCA

Sydney Hobart Yacht Race Safety of Life at Sea Trusts.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2004 (continued)



The Company has chosen to disclose additional financial

information which it is under no legal obligation to present.

This additional financial information presented on page 44 is in

accordance with the books and records of the Cruising Yacht Club

of Australia which have been subjected to the auditing procedures

applied in our statutory audits of the Company. It will be

appreciated that our statutory audits did not cover all details of the

additional financial information. Accordingly, we do not express an

opinion on such financial information and no warranty of accuracy

or reliability is given.

In accordance with our Firm policy, we advise that neither the

Firm nor any member or employee of the Firm undertakes

responsibility arising in any way whatsoever to any person (other

than the Company) in respect of such information, including any

errors or omissions therein, arising through negligence or

otherwise however caused.

KPMG

Sydney

May 2004

Cruising Yacht Club of Australia Annual Report: year end 31 March 2004 43

Disclaimer



Annual Report: year end 31 March 2004 Cruising Yacht Club of Australia44

2004 2003 2002

$ $ $

Administration

Subscriptions Received 884,561 901,439 932,382

Clothing Sales 101,413 111,700 107,582

Property Rental & Sundry Income 265,079 171,938 148,193

1,251,053 1,185,077 1,188,157

Less Consolidated Expenses 107,549 91,716 83,207

1,143,504 1,093,361 1,104,950

Food & Beverage

Bars 1,684,404 1,667,996 1,606,404

Dining Room 160,140 175,395 216,942

Commissions Received 146,992 152,016 161,223

Functions 990,180 952,910 776,065

2,981,716 2,948,317 2,760,634

Less

Consolidated Expenses 3,118,080 3,147,936 3,089,046

-136,364 -199,619 -328,412

Yard & Marina

Marina 1,028,045 984,490 961,324

Other Income 598,094 581,164 531,707

Yard & Slipway 17,309 15,228 16,658

1,643,448 1,580,882 1,509,689

Less 

Consolidated Expenses 1,516,455 1,410,323 1,323,851

126,993 170,559 185,838

Sailing Activities

Youth Sailing Academy 304,647 354,762 216,201

Season Sailing 266,837 288,944 235,445

Major Races 1,264,917 1,303,257 1,089,745

1,836,401 1,946,963 1,541,391

Less

Consolidated Expenses 2,783,931 2,616,141 2,107,431

-947,530 -669,178 -566,040

Operating Profit for the Year 186,603 395,123 396,336

Supplementary Information
for the year ended 31 March 2004
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CRAWFORD R.A 1994

CREECY J. 1998

CREEDON G 2002

CREIGHTON P J 2001

CRIBB P 2001

CRICHTON N.A 1985

CRICHTON-BROWN R. 1964

CRIMMINGS E.V. 1998

CRIMMINGS T. 1999

CRITHARIS W 2002

CROMPTON R.E. 1995

CROOKSHANKS S. 1998

CROPLEY F 2000

CROPLEY G.D 1993

CROUCHER B. 1994

CRUMP T.J 1981

CUDDIHY A.J 1993

CULLEN G 2002

CULPAN D.L. 1999

CULPIN C.W. 1999

CUMMINGS M.P. 1997

CUMMINS N.P 2002

CUMMINS W.J.B 1995

CUNNINGHAM JG 2001

CUNNINGHAM R. 1999

CURGENVEN C. 1991

CURNOW D. 2003

CURRAN C.P 1993

CURRIE D C 2004

CURRIE D.J 1977

CURRIE D. 1998

CURRIE R I 2001

CURTIS J.S. 1996

CUSMANO A.M. 1999

D'EMILIO M.L. 2000

D'EMILIO V. 1975

DAGGER C.M 1985

DALE I.W 1984

DALEY J.A 1988

DALEY J.J 1998

DALEY R. 1985

DALGLIESH S.J. 1994

DALTON T.J 1981

DAMMANN A. 1996

DAMROW M.N 1991

DAN A.M 1967

DARKE M. 1999

DARLEY-JONES P.J 1984

DARLINGTON L. 1991
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DASH P.J 1993

DAVIES A. 1998

DAVIES B.W 1966

DAVIES D.W.I 1996

DAVIES F. 1999

DAVIES J.S 1995

DAVIES K.A 1979

DAVIES L. 1998

DAVIES M.J 1988

DAVIES S 2001

DAVIES V.E 1988

DAVIS A.W. 1997

DAVIS C. 2000

DAVIS C.D 1996

DAVIS G 2001

DAVIS K. 1970

DAVIS P.J. 1996

DAVIS-SLADE J. 1984

DAVY W.D. 1995

DAWBNEY M.A 1998

DAWES J.E. 1998

DAWKINS P. 1980

DAWSON I.A. 1998

DAWSON J.C 1967

DAY M.I 1993

DAY O.L 1985

DE ANGELIS J. 1999

DE LA VEGA J.A 1979

DE LAINE G 2003

DE LAINE N. 2002

De MAMIEL A. 1998

DE NETT H.W 1987

DE SALABERRY J 2003

DE TORRES A.C. 1997

DE TORRES H.C 1976

DE TORRES J.P. 1994

DE TORRES M.H. 1996

DE TORRES V. 1994

DE TORRES Y 2001

DEAN D.T. 1999

DEBENHAM E 2003

DEBNEY R.S. 1998

DELANEY A. 1986

DELANEY M.R 1984

DELL D. 1958

DEMEYRICK A.L 2003

DEMEYRICK A.E 2003

DEMEYRICK A.B 2003

DEMEYRICK J.M 2003

DENISON H.P 1984

DENNIS A 2003

DENOON JM 2003

DERHAM CJ 2001

DERHAM Y.T. 2001

DERMODY E.G 1957

DEVERY B.A 1970

DEVLIN T.G. 2001

DEXTER R.E. 1995

DICKINSON AD 2001

DICKINSON A P 1995

DICKINSON N 2001

DICKSON D.B 1963

DICKSON I.H 1993

DIETHELM J.B 1961

DIETRICH W.O 1981

DILLON S. 2002

DIXON C.E 1993

DIXON-HUGHES J. 1963

DIXON-HUGHES P. 1964

DOBRIJEVICH I. 1985

DOCK J.S 1998

DODD J. 1983

DOEL R.A 1998

DONNELLEY M.C 1997

DONOGHUE P.K 1985

DONOHOE R. 1992

DONOVAN S. 1994

DOOLEY L. 1987

DOOLIN M.V 1992

DOVEY R.P 1983

DOWER C. 1999

DOWLING H.R 1992

DOWLING M.R 1965

DOWNES S. 2002

DOYLE D. 1994

DRAKE-BROCKMAN P.N 1998

DRANEY P 2004

DREDGE H.J 1982

DRENT M.P 1977

DREW E.J 1966

DREW E. 1998

DREW J.E 1998

DREW R.S 1993

DREW S.J. 1998

DRISCOLL K 2001

DRUMMOND JS 2002

DRURY GA 2002

DRYDEN J 2003

DUFF S.M 1993

DUFFELL C 2001

DUFFELL I W 2001

DUFFELL S 2001

DUFFIELD P. 1994

DUGGAN D.A 1978

DUNN E. 1999

DUNN M.B 1998

DUNNE DJ 2001

DUNNE S. 1998

DUNNETT K. 2002

DUNPHY A 2003

DUNPHY D 2003

DUNPHY P 2003

DUPREE J.R 1998

DUSSELDORP T. 1979

DUVALL C 2000

EADIE P.A 1978

EADY A. 1970

EASLEY N.L. 2002

EASTMAN S. 1999

EASTON S.W 1971

EASTWOOD D.R. 1994

EBENEZER I.T. 1994

EBENEZER J. 1998

EDGAR J.S 1985

EDGINTON A. 1998

EDGINTON C. 1998

EDGINTON J 1998

EDMONDS K. 1995

EDWARDS A.M 2002

EDWARDS G 2001

EDWARDS J.W 2003

EDWARDS M.J 2003

EDWARDS P.J 2002

EDWARDS S.R 1977

EGAN C.M 1986

EGAN M 2001

EGINTON A.W 1992

EGINTON C 2002

EGINTON J.A. 1999

EISENHUTH J. 1999

EISZELE P.A. 2000

ELKINGTON M.S. 1999

ELLIOTT F J 2004

ELLIOTT H.J. 1996

ELLIOTT M.J 1976

ELLIOTT S. 1997

ELLIS C L 2001

ELLIS C. 1995

ELLIS D.M. 1999

ELLIS R. 1988

ELSASS G.A. 2003

ELSBURY B. 1999

ELSBURY C.E. 1999

ELSEGOOD M. 2000

EMERSON B.N 1994

EMERSON P E 2001

EMMS M.G 1997

EPSTEIN S.D 1990

ERLING E 2002

ERSKINE J.R.M 1998

ERSKINE-LEVICK K. 2003

ETTER F. 1998

EVANGELINIDIS T.J 1979

EVANS A.W 1962

EVANS B 2003

EVANS G.N 1971

EVERETT LJ 2001

EWBANK J.C 1989

EWEN R. 1986

EWEN V.J. 1986

FABBRO J.R 2001

FABULIC L. 1984

FADER JC 2001

FAGENCE P. 1998

FAIRFAX G. 1999

FALCONER M. 1986

FALLON P. 1995

FALSON R. 1964

FARREN-PRICE J.A 1980

FARWAGI D.M 1989

FATOUROS K.J. 1995

FAY C.K. 1998

FEBO L. 2003

FELTON A.E. 2004

FEREDAY J.A 1984

FERGUSON D. 1996

FERGUSON D.A 1994

FERGUSON E.H 1979

FERRIS W.D 1979

FEWSTER D. 1998

FEWTRELL J. 1995

FIEL R. 1998

FIELD P.S 1992

FIELDING R. 1999

FIELDS D 2000

FIELDS K.O 1998

FINCH A. 1998

FINCH P. 1998

FINCH T.A 1995

FINDLAY J. 1997

FINDLAY W.S 1998

FINKELSTEIN C 2002

FINLAYSON A. 2004

FINNERTY A. 2002

FINNERTY T.M 1988

FIRMIN M 2004

FIRMSTONE P.J 1972

FIRTH-SMITH J. 1994

FISCHER S. 1962

FISHER D. 1997

FISHER F.A 1990

FITZGERALD P 2001

FLAHVIN T.J 2002

FLETCHER M.F 1970

FOLBIGG B. 1976

FOLBIGG H. C. 1999

FOLBIGG J.M. 1999

FOLEY G. 1989

FORBES K.D. 1997

FORBES N.A. 1995

FORBES W.M 1990

FORD A. R. 1999

FORD DJ 2001

FORDHAM J 2001

FORMOSA M.A 1994

FORTUNE R. 1998

FORWOOD T.W. 1999

FOSTER D. 1997

FOSTER D.F 2002

FOSTER T.M 1998

FOX C.J 2003

FOX M 2001

FOX N 2001

FOX N 2000

FOYE B.B 1989

FRAMPTON P.W 1989

FRANCIS J R 2001

FRANCIS L 2003

FRANCIS S. 1994

FRANK D. 1994

FRANK E. 1993

FRANK M.F 1985

FRANKI D.J 1992

FRANKI P.R. 1994

FRANKLIN C. 1985

FRANKS P.T 1994

FRASER G.D. 1979

FRASER K. F. 1999

FRASER M. 1998

FRASER PW 2002

FRASER R.G 1977

FREEDMAN L. 1987

FREEDMAN M 2001

FREEMAN G. 1971

FREEMAN J.P. 1999

FREEMAN K.A 1985

FREEMAN SE 2001

FREER D.G 1964

FRELINGER M. 1999

FRENCH K.G. 1994

FRENCH S 2003

FROELICH C. 2000

FUJITAKE E. 1999

FUJITAKE K. 1999

FUJITAKE L. 1999

FULDE S 2002

FULDE T 2002

FULLER D. 1976

FURNESS W.F 1997

GALLAGHER M.D 1984

GALLAGHER M. 1997

GALLAHER M.W 1998

GALLETTO M 2000

GALLETTO M 2000

GAM L 2002

GAMBACORTI A 2000

GAMBACORTI B. 1981

GAMBLE J. 1997

GARAVAN K. 1998

GARDINER P 1999

GARDNER E.B 1977

GARDNER P. 1985

GARDNER W.V 1978

GARDNER W. 1994

GARLICK B. 1998

GARNER J.T. 1999

GARNETT C.V 1994

GAZAL S.M 1971

GAZZARD E.M 1994

GEDDES L. 1989

GEDDES P.J 1965

GEEVES C.J 1993

GEISSLER M 2001

GERKE-REINEKE A. 1999

GIBSON G M 2001

GIBSON G.V.A 1996
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GIBSON J.E 1992

GIBSON M 2003

GIBSON P.R 1992

GIFFIN S.J 1998

GILBERT S.P 1998

GILDER J.D 1992

GILDING S.R 2004

GILL M. 1996

GILLESPIE A 2002

GILLIES E. 1989

GILLIES R.J 1988

GIRDIS E. 1982

GIRDIS G.S 1954

GIRDIS S.M. 1994

GLASSON R.J 1994

GLUYAS W. 1998

GOBEN J 2003

GODDARD GG 2002

GODDARD J. 1975

GODDARD M 2002

GODDARD P.M 1978

GODDARD Jnr. J.L 1976

GOGGIN C.J. 1996

GOLDSTIVER B. 1992

GOLDSTIVER P.A. 1995

GOLDSWORTHY B. 1996

GOLDSWORTHY P.B 1994

GOLOVSKY G 1996

GOLUZD J 2001

GOMER P.J. 1998

GOMEZ-HALL D 2003

GOOCH R.J 1984

GOODBUN M.J 1978

GOODE D. 1989

GOODISON E.A. 1999

GOODMAN J.M 2003

GOODRIDGE L.W. 1994

GOODWIN P.R. 1995

GOOLEY B.R 1994

GOOLEY C.M 1994

GORDON B. 1997

GORDON M. 2003

GORDON S.L 1993

GORE T.A 1998

GORMAN A.D 1998

GORMAN C M 1995

GORMAN M.C 1998

GORMAN Y.N 1998

GOSSON N.E 1965

GOTZE D. 1998

GOUGH D.A 1991

GOUGH H.D 1992

GOULD B.D 1966

GOWING L. 2003

GOWLLAND J.D 2002

GOYMOUR J. 1999

GOYMOUR P.C. 1999

GOYMOUR T. 1999

GRACE C.J 2002

GRAF K. 1998

GRAHAM C.E 1984

GRAHAM D.C 1980

GRAHAM P. 1996

GRANGER J 2001

GRANGER M. 1995

GRANGER R 2001

GRANT C. 1995

GRANT R.K 1998

GRANT R. L. 1999

GRATTAN K. 2000

GRAY D.M. 2003

GRAY J 2001

GREEN A. 1989

GREEN I. 1987

GREEN I. 1996

GREEN J 2000

GREEN L. 1959

GREEN M.J. 1994

GREEN R 2002

GREER C 2001

GREER P 2001

GREGORIAN A. 1995

GREGORY A.W 1998

GREGORY D.E. 1996

GREGORY S 2004

GREGORY-ROBERTS E. 1993

GRELLIS S. 1999

GRETTON C. 1998

GREY D.N 1998

GREY L. 1989

GRIEVE H. 1979

GRIFFIN B 2004

GRIFFIN K.B 1998

GRIFFITH D.C 1991

GRIFFITHS A. 1999

GRIFFITHS G. 1999

GROGAN A.F 1989

GROUNDS P. 1986

GROUNDS W.F 1994

GROUNDS W.W 1991

GROVE P.A. 1995

GROVE P. 2003

GROVES C. D. 1999

GROVES R.C. 1994

GRUBB C 2001

GRUBB R. 1982

GRUZMAN A B 2001

GRYLLIS C. 1986

GUANARIA I. 2003

GUANARIA J. 2003

GUDERJAHN R.S 1988

GUENTHER J 2002

GULLEY L.M 1994

GUNNESS B 2003

GUNNING J.P 1991

HABER A.L. 2002

HADLEY D J 2001

HAGAN A.G. 1999

HAGON G. 1989

HAGON W.A.B 1998

HAIK J.C 1994

HALE M. 1999

HALES S.J. 2003

HALL J 2001

HALL J A 2001

HALL MHJ 2001

HALL M.J 1989

HALL R.J 1967

HALL W.D 1989

HALLS G.W 1976

HALLS L. 1978

HALVORSEN T. 1946

HAMILTON P.J. 2003

HAMMOND E. 1995

HAMMOND G.A 1966

HAMMOND M.R 1991

HAMMOND R.L 1967

HAMPSHIRE R. 2003

HANCOCK P.R 1998

HANDEL V. 2004

HANDLIN D A 2004

HANDS D.J 1985

HANKIN P. 1967

HANLAN D 1998

HANLEY D. 1997

HANLEY P. 1997

HANNAN S.A. 2003

HARDY OBE J.G 1971

HAREMZA G. 1992

HARGREAVES P 2000

HARPER R. 1989

HARRIGAN D. 1998

HARRIS B 2002

HARRIS J. 1994

HARRIS J.R 1970

HARRIS P. 1995

HARRIS R.A. 1999

HARRIS R 2004

HARRIS R.B. 2000

HARRISON A 2001

HARRISON E.J 1994

HARRISON J.R 1984

HARRISON J.S 1955

HARRISON RW 2001

HARRISON VA 2001

HART A.B 1980

HART C.B 1993

HART D L 2001

HARVEY D. 1994

HASEMER O.L 1974

HASTIE J 1996

HATCH A.R 1976

HATTON H.R 1981

HAWCROFT C 2002

HAWCROFT P 2001

HAWKINS A 2002

HAWLEY D. 1994

HAWTHORN A 2002

HAWTHORN R 2002

HAYDEN D.B 1992

HAYES-HEARSE R. 1997

HAYWARD M 2001

HAZELTON R.J 1974

HEALY D.M. 1995

HEALY GA 2001

HEARDER A.M 1976

HEARSE J.B 1997

HEARSE P.B. 1997

HEATHCOTE M 2001

HEENAN J.C. 2002

HEENAN P.G. 2001

HEFFERNAN M.J. 1994

HEHIR V. 1999

HEILIGERS S.J. 1994

HEILIGERS L.G. 2003

HEILIGERS S.L. 2003

HEILIGERS T.F. 2003

HEININGER R.W 1991

HEINONEN P. 1994

HEMERY J.L 2001

HEMMING J.M 2003

HEMPEL S. 1997

HENDERSON A.G. 1994

HENDERSON R.M. 1999

HENDREY J. 1979

HENDREY P 2000

HENNESSY P 2000

HENRICKS P.J 1987

HENRY DG 2002

HENRY J 2004

HENRY O 2002

HENRY R 2002

HENRY S 2002

HERCUS AV 2001

HERD T. J. 1999

HERDA C. 1997

HERDA J. 2002

HERDE C.J 1985

HERLIHY D. 1970

HERPS J.P 1997

HERTZ L. 1965

HESSE M.J 1968

HESSION G. 2003

HEUCHMER G. 1984

HICKMAN R.J 1993

HICKS W.J 2004

HIGGINS R 2001

HIGHFIELD S 2004

HILL G.G 1989

HILL P.M 1961

HILL R M 2001

HILLEARD D. 1995

HINDMARSH JM 2003

HINDS G 2002

HIRST A.R. 1996

HIRST C 2002

HIRST G. 1998

HOARE K.G. 2000

HOBBS R. 1998

HOCKING J 2000

HOCKINGS I 2003

HODDER J.G. 1999

HODGESON S.J 1998

HODGKINSON D.J 1993

HODGKINSON L.V. 1999

HODGSON D.R 1984

HODGSON M 2001

HODGSON-ARMSTRONG S.N 2003

HOEY J.J 1992

HOGG D.R. 1994

HOLBROOK G.B 2002

HOLE G.R 2001

HOLLAND G.L 1998

HOLLES DMAC 2001

HOLLES F.D 1994

HOLLEY I.L 1998

HOLLEY J. 2002

HOLLINGSWORTH M. 1989

HOLMES FV 2001

HOLSTEIN R. 1997

HOLT A.M 1996

HOLT G.L 1985

HOOKE CM 2002

HOOKE D.J 1989

HOOKE JE 2002

HOOKE SA 2002

HOPKINSON M.M 1992

HORNE K. 1992

HOUGH T. 1997

HOULIHAN A 2002

HOUSE D.V 1992

HOUSE H. 1963

HOUSTON W. 2002

HOWARD H.J. 1992

HOWARD J.H 1994

HOWARD L.J 1994

HOWARD R 2003

HOWE G. 1997

HOWES P.S 1966

HOWES S.A. 2001

HOWISON K. 1977

HUBAN C. 1998

HUBER D 1995

HUDSON B.C 1974

HUDSON S.G 1993

HUGHES B. 2003

HUGHES K.S 1998

HUGHES L.A. 1997

HULFORD P 1996

HULL P.R. 1994

HUNT B. 1996

HUNT GE 2002

HUNT NM 2002

HUNT R.W 1993

HUNT S.A. 1994

HUNTER B.C 1989
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HUNTER A. 1987

HUSE T. 1991

HUTCHESON R 2000

HUTSON J.R 1989

HUXLEY J. 1994

HUXLEY K 2001

HYDE EAJ 2001

HYETT RA 2002

HYLAND P. 1999

HYND D J 2001

IACONO C. 1965

IKIN P.A 1988

ILLY T. 1972

INCHBOLD C 2001

INCHBOLD E 2001

INCHBOLD PJ 2001

INCHBOLD P 2001

IND J.D. 1979

INGATE G.W 1949

INGVALL L.S. 1997

IPKENDANZ A.K 1993

IPKENDANZ D. 1993

IRELAND W. 1998

ISKANDER H. 1996

ISLES A.V. 1976

ISLES D.J 1955

IVANEZA M. 1998

JACKMAN K.L 1990

JACKSON A 2003

JACKSON A.D. 1997

JACKSON B.G 1965

JACKSON D S 2001

JACKSON M. 1992

JACOB PM 2003

JACOB S 2000

JACOBS K. 1986

JACOBS N.C 1991

JACOBSEN K.A 1988

JACOBSSON S. 1991

JAGGAR K.A 1978

JAMES B. 1972

JAMES C.M 1995

JAMES L. 1998

JAMES M.R 1992

JAMES SE 2001

JAMIESON G. 1987

JAMIESON J. 2002

JARMAN S.M. 1994

JARRETT J. 1999

JARRETT J. 1999

JARRETT J. 1999

JARRETT T. 1999

JARVIN S 2003

JARVIN S.V 1981

JARVIS R.L 2001

JEFFREY B.R 2003

JEFREY M.J. 1999

JELLINS JC 2001

JELLINS LE 2001

JENKINS B 2000

JENKINSON P.L 1988

JENNINGS D 2001

JERVIS P. 2002

JOEL J. 1982

JOHNS M.N 1987

JOHNS P.S 1986

JOHNSON A 2002

JOHNSON B.S. 1999

JOHNSON L. 2003

JOHNSON P.J. 1973

JOHNSON P.J. 1999

JOHNSON P.W 1985

JOHNSON T.P. 2002

JOHNSTON A.I. 2003

JOHNSTON F.M 1978

JOHNSTON G.W 1982

JOHNSTON N.T. 1999

JOHNSTON P.D 2002

JOHNSTON R.M 1993

JOHNSTON T.G 1988

JOHNSTON T. 1997

JOHNSTONE T.E 1984

JOLLIE T. 2000

JONES C.R 1997

JONES D.A. 1999

JONES I.M. 2001

JONES J.P 1995

JONES N. 1979

JORDAN D.W 2003

JOSEPH P. 1998

JOSEPHSON F.C 1998

JOSEPHSON F.E. 1998

JOSEPHSON J 1998

JOSLING C.M 1994

JOUBERT P. 1973

JOYCE A 2003

JOYCE T. 1995

JUG S 2004

JUTSON S.H 1994

KAHLBETZER J.D. 1967

KAHLBETZER M.N. 1999

KARP M.J 1991

KARPIN J. 2003

KATER WH 2002

KAUFMAN G.S 1967

KAUFMAN H.T 1956

KAWALLA T A 2001

KEANE S.R 1990

KEARNEY M. 2003

KEELTY J. 1965

KEELTY M.A 1994

KEEP L.F 1977

KEHR H.M 2004

KELLETT B.D 1993

KELLETT D.B 1970

KELLETT K.L 1984

KELLY B. 1994

KELLY F.C 1985

KELLY H.N 1985

KELLY M.J. 1997

KELLY M.P. 2001

KELLY O. 1997

KELLY P. 2003

KELLY T. 1996

KELLY T.M. 1997

KELSO R.W 1996

KEMENY G. 1999

KENDALL A.B. 2003

KENNEALLY A 2003

KENNEDY D.T 1984

KENNEDY J 2000

KEON G.F 1968

KERDIJK F. 1998

KERR S. 1999

KERR W.N 1976

KERR-BOYLE M 2000

KERRY P J 2001

KESBY GF 2001

KESBY G 2001

KESBY H 2001

KESBY R 2001

KESBY S 2001

KESTERS K.P. 1994

KIERNAN I.B 1969

KINCAID C.J. 1994

KING A. 1995

KING B.R 1974

KING D.S 1974

KING G.L 1985

KING J A 2003

KING M. 2003

KING M. 1999

KING P. 1983

KINGS J.A. 1997

KINGSMILL N 1998

KIRBY A 2001

KIRBY A.R 1994

KIRBY C 2001

KIRBY J.R. 1994

KIRBY M 2003

KIRK B. 1996

KIRK H. 1996

KIRK S.A. 1996

KIRK S.W. 1996

KIRKJIAN A.J 1980

KIRKJIAN J.C 1979

KIRKPATRICK W.R. 1999

KLAAS J. 1999

KLEE L 2002

KLINE C.L. 1999

KLINE P.W 1996

KLINE S.P 1998

KNOX C 2001

KOMORI K. 1994

KOMORI S. 1994

KONAKCI K.O. 1999

KONRADS J. 1997

KOPCHO M.P 1983

KOPPE B 2002

KORTLANG I W 1995

KOTHE R. 1997

KOTZIAS P.J. 2003

KRAWCHUK D.M 1991

KUCZYNSKI M.J 1991

KUIPER E. 1999

KURTS A. 1991

KURTS P.P 1967

KURTS S.R 1987

KUSZNIER S. 1985

KUYPERS R.J 1998

L'ESTRANGE A. 1997

LAANMAA G J 2004

LAKE C. 1997

LAKER G.J. 1997

LALLENSACK M. 1998

LAM D. 2004

LAM J 2001

LAMB B 2003

LAMB CJ 2002

LAMB H 2002

LAMB J 2002

LAMB JW 2002

LAMB SJ 2002

LAMONT M.L. 1998

LANDIS B.A 1967

LANE DA 2002

LANE M. 1993

LANGFORD M.C. 2002

LANGMAN S 2000

LARKINS W.K 1987

LARSON J.L 1994

LASKY M. 1982

LATIMER C 2003

LAU S. 1994

LAUGHTON T J 1998

LAURANCE A.O. P 2000

LAVALOU E 2002

LAVERS R. 1999

LAVERS S. 1998

LAVERS S. 1998

LAVIS A.G. 1995

LAVIS B.P 1993

LAVIS G.R 1985

LAVIS P.S 1994

LAWLER A.K. 1997

LAWLER H.A. 1999

LAWLER R.H 1995

LAWRANCE B.J. 1996

LAWSON D.A 1964

LAWSON S.E. 1995

LAWSON T.W. 2002

LAWTON T. 1997

LEE A.G 1963

LEE J.M 1979

LEE L. 2003

LEE-WARNER J. 1995

LEEMING A.L. 1999

LEES A. 2002

LEGGE F. 2002

LEONARD S. 2000

LESLIE L 2000

LESLIE S E 2002

LEVEN J. 1999

LEVINSON P. 1995

LEWIN A. 1999

LEWIN R. 2004

LEWIS B. 1979

LEWIS M.D 1992

LEWIS N.H 1980

LEWIS P.A. 1999

LEWIS-BEARMAN G. 1984

LEY J.A 1985

LIDDY A 2002

LIGHEZZOLO D. 1985

LIIVRAND C. 1999

LINACRE G.J 1983

LINACRE J 2002

LINACRE JA 2002

LINACRE R 2002

LINDSAY H. 1962

LINEY S 2002

LIPSCOMBE M. 1995

LISTER M 2001

LITTLEY F.D 1985

LIVERMORE N.H. 1994

LIVINGSTONE A. 2002

LIVINGSTONE D. 1995

LIVINGSTONE E A 2004

LOANEY M. 1999

LOHBERG H.B 1987

LONGHEON D. 1999

LORIMER C. 1998

LOUGHEED C.E 1988

LOVERING DH 2001

LOVETT H. 1994

LOW J. 1982

LOWDEN A.J. 2003

LOWE D.B 1992

LUCAS R. 1999

LUKAS A.J 1973

LUKE P. 1944

LULHAM A. 1999

LYGO A 2000

LYKIARDOPULO N F 2001

LYNCH P 2003

LYNCH-GARDNER M. 1985

LYONS D. 2003

LYSAGHT D. 1999

MACDONALD A.H 1998

MACDONALD P.D. 2003

MacDONALD P.D 1984

MACDONALD R.A. 1998

MACDOUGALL S 1999

MacELBING I.J 1977

MACHIN A 2001

MACKAY A.A. 1999
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Annual Report: year end 31 March 2004 Cruising Yacht Club of Australia50

MACKIE A.N 1984

MacMAHON E. 1994

MacMAHON M. 1997

MacMAHON P.T 1994

MacMAHON T.P 1994

MacMAHON V.F 1998

MACNAMARA T C 2001

MACONOCHIE J.M. 1995

MACPHERSON C. 2002

MACPHERSON D. 1998

MacRAE D.R 1964

MACRAE S.A 1995

MacSWEEN P. 1999

MADDEN J.P. 2004

MADDEN P.M 1978

MADDEN T.P. 2001

MAGEE P.M 1998

MAGOWAN C 2001

MAHOMED D 2003

MAHONY C.G 1984

MAHONY G. 1976

MAHONY P.G 1998

MAINSBRIDGE A.L 1996

MAINSBRIDGE I.J. 1996

MAINSBRIDGE J.J 1996

MAINSBRIDGE M.E 1996

MAITLAND N 2003

MAITZ K. 1999

MAITZ P 2000

MAIZELS S.J. 1994

MAJOR C.S 1998

MAJOR JA 2001

MALLETT V.J 1994

MALOUF C. 1999

MANGOSI E 2001

MANLEY I.R 1986

MANNS C. 1995

MANSON J.M 1983

MANUEL G. 1994

MARA K.E. 2002

MARBLE D. 2003

MARET G.P. 1997

MARGO R.F. 1999

MARINA S. 1984

MARISH M 2002

MARKELL D J 2001

MARKOS J.J 1997

MARKOS J 2001

MARKS F 2003

MARLER N 2003

MARR A.R. 1998

MARR C. 1999

MARR C W 1995

MARR R. 1982

MARR V 2001

MARSH P 1995

MARSHALL A.B. 1983

MARSHALL D.F. 2003

MARSHALL G.D 1982

MARSHALL J 2002

MARTIN H 1999

MARTYN S A 2001

MARWOOD L. 1990

MASON D C M 2001

MASON I. 1998

MASON P.E. 1998

MASSEY D.J. 1999

MATHER A. 1994

MATHEWS P.W 1967

MATHEWS S.P 1993

MATHLIN D.H 1980

MATISZIK K.F. 1999

MATTERSON R.N.M 1999

MATTHEWS F.L 1991

MATTHEWS M.K 1984

MAUGHAN G.M 1992

MAURY J.A 1990

MAXWELL D.C 1987

MAY A.T. 1997

MAY J.M 1975

MAY J. 1992

MAY L.B 1984

MAY S.T.F 1999

MAY S. 1999

MAYO J 2003

McADAM P. 1992

McALLISTER J 2002

McAULEY R.A 1958

MCAULIFFE J.P. 1999

McBURNIE S.A 1991

McCARRON D 2004

McCARRON M.F 2003

MCCARRON M.S. 1999

McCARTHY E.C 1985

McCARTHY M 2001

McCARTHY N.T 1989

McCARTHY W. 1999

McCARTHY W.J 1993

McCLEAN D.J 1986

McCLEAN L. 1967

McCLEAN                          L. 1999

McCLELLAND P 2003

McCONCHIE R.E 1997

McCONCHIE R 2001

McCONVILLE D.J. 1997

McCONVILLE M. L. 1999

McCOOK W.A 1982

McCORMICK T.A 1989

McCRORY A 2003

McDONALD C.X 1991

McDONALD CS 2001

McDONALD D.L 1996

McDONALD D.F 1984

McDONALD F.A 1986

McDONALD JD 2001

McDONALD R. 1995

McDOWALL G 2001

MCDOWALL L. 1998

McDOWELL P. J. 1999

McELLIGOTT M. 1990

McELROY C 2001

McELROY JH 2001

McEWAN S.W 1998

MCEWEN B. 1999

MCEWEN D.J. 1999

McEWEN R. 1999

McFARLANE B.W 1985

McFARLANE I. 1993

McGEE P 2003

McGEOUGH P 1999

McGOWAN G. 1997

McGOWAN N. 1997

McGOWAN S. 1997

McGOWAN T.J 1991

McGRATH D.M. 2000

McGRODER G.J 1986

McINTYRE J.A 1989

McINTYRE V.A 1993

McIVOR A W 2001

MCKAY D 2002

McKENZIE K 2002

McKENZIE P 2002

McKEOWN S 2003

McKIM J. 1971

McKINNON V 2003

MCKOWEN S. 2002

McLAREN J.J 1955

McLAREN J. 1962

McLAUGHLIN L 2001

McLELAND K.L. 1999

McLEOD G. 1993

McLOUGHLIN N.J 1994

McLOUGHLIN R.J 1997

MCMAHON R 2003

McMILLAN C. 1997

McMILLAN E J W 1997

McMILLAN S. 2000

McNELIS M. 1999

McNICOLL DD 2002

McNICOLL MP 2002

MCNULTY S. 1998

MCPHEE J. 1999

McPHEE L. 1999

McSORLEY C.J 1998

MEANI R.J 1994

MEARES C. 1997

MECOY X. 1995

MEDWIN F E 2001

MEEHAN C.S 1994

MELICK A. 2003

MELLOR P.C 1998

MELOSU A. 1996

MELOSU A. 1996

MELOSU S. 1996

MELVILLE J. 2000

MENDES K.P 2004

MENZIES A 2002

MEREDITH MM 2001

MERITY J.L 1992

MERLINO A 2002

MERLINO G. 2002

MERLINO M 2002

MERLINO P 2002

MESSENGER A. 1999

MESSENGER C.J 1979

MESSENGER J.C 1983

MESSENGER K.L. 2002

MESSENGER K. 1985

MESSENGER P.B 1984

MESSENGER T. 1984

MEYER J.G 1989

MEYER L.K 1987

MICHAEL H. 1994

MICHALOWSKY M.S 1991

MICHOD D.H 1998

MICKLEBOROUGH D.E 1958

MICKLEWRIGHT PJ 2003

MILES C. 1999

MILES G. 1982

MILLER A 2003

MILLER A. 2002

MILLER J.W 1988

MILLER K. 1998

MILLER M. 1983

MILLS J.D. 2003

MILLS M 2001

MILLS P.R 1967

MILNE L. 1994

MINEHAN L.P 1985

MINOGUE M.P 1991

MINTER C.A 1991

MINTO S.G 1980

MIROW W.J 1974

MISCHE R.E 1964

MITCHELL C 2002

MITCHELL J.P. 1997

MITCHELL L.D 1998

MOATE J.L 1984

MOLINE H. 1998

MOLONEY D. 1998

MOLONEY P. 1999

MOLONY P.J 1983

MONTANARO F. 2002

MONTGOMERY K.W. 1994

MOONEY P. 1977

MOORE J.M 1977

MOORE M.S 1995

MOORE R.C 1984

MOORE R.G 1994

MOORHOUSE A.C 1998

MOORMAN T 2000

MOOY R.B. 1998

MOREY N.L 1992

MORGAN G K 2004

MORISSET D. 1983

MORLAND D 2004

MORLAND T 2004

MORRIS A.G 1973

MORRIS J.K 1970

MORRIS J. L. 2002

MORRIS P.G. 2002

MORRIS S.E. 1995

MORRIS Y. 1993

MORRISON J.R 1992

MORRISSEY J.B 1993

MORROW B.J 1998

MORSE A.W 1988

MORT G. 1998

MORTON R.L 1987

MOSEDALE P. 1995

MOSS C.J. 2003

MOSS K.S 1961

MOUFARRIGE M E 2004

MOWTELL K.J 1979

MUIR G.W. 1999

MUIR J.M. 1999

MUIR R. 1985

MUIRHEAD S. 1997

MULHERIN C. 1998

MULHERIN P.A 1993

MULLENS T 1999

MUNDLE R.G 1970

MUNNS B.J. 1995

MUNRO V.F 1994

MURATORE A 1999

MURDOCH L.K 1997

MURDOCH R. 1998

MURDOCH SA 2001

MURNAGHAN A.W 1994

MURPHY A.B 1998

MURPHY J 2002

MURPHY V.O. 2003

MURRAY I.G 1988

MURRAY P. 1984

MURRAY S.M. 1997

MUSGROVE A. 1995

MUSGROVE J.D 1957

MYATT J W 2004

NAIL B.J 1989

NAIL B. 1993

NASH D.A 1993

NATHERSON J 1995

NAVRATIL P.S 2004

NEATE P.M. 1994

NEAVES P. 1998

NEEDHAM C.U 1993

NEILL W J 2003

NELSON G.I 1980

NELSON P J 1995

NEWELL K.R 1994

NEWGROSH D.A. 1983

NEWHOUSE M. 1999

NEWTON GC 2001

NEWTON L 2001

NEWTON N.R 1990

NEWTON S 2002
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NEYLON R 2001

NICHOLLS J.M 1987

NICKOLLS A.E 1987

NIEDERER L 2000

NOAKES J.W 1967

NOBBS E.P 1965

NOLDART R.J 1988

NOONAN C.M 1982

NOOREN A.G 1985

NORMAN J.U. 2003

NORTH J.B. 1999

NORTHCOTE B R 2000

NORTHFIELD P.T. 1999

O'BRIEN N.G. 1999

O'BRIEN P.A 1996

O'BRIEN R 2001

O'CONNELL J.D 1949

O'CONNELL P.M 1991

O'CONNELL PJ 2001

O'CONNOR C 2001

O'CONNOR R.G 1990

O'CONNOR S 2002

O'GRADY K.J 1989

O'HALLORAN S. 1995

O'LEARY C.L. 2003

O'LEARY C.M. 2003

O'LEARY M.J. 2003

O'LEARY F.B. 2003

O'LOUGHLIN P. 1986

O'LOUGHLIN S.M. 1999

O'MALLEY J. 1993

O'NEIL D.J 1965

O'NEIL J. 2002

O'NEILE G. 1997

O'NEILL G. 1983

O'NEILL G 2003

O'NEILL G.J 1979

O'NEILL M. 1998

O'ROURKE S 2001

O'SHEA K 2001

O'SULLIVAN B. 1996

O'SULLIVAN M. 1999

OATES K 2001

OAYDA L. 1994

OCHIAI M. 1995

OELRICHS I.E 1988

OGDEN J.E. 2003

OLD S.E 1974

OLIVER M.M 1986

OLLIFFE N.G 1998

ORLIC I 2003

OSBORNE P.J 1989

OSMOND B. 1997

OSMOND G. 1997

OSMOND M. 1997

OSMOND P. 1997

OTTLEY N.J. 1994

OTTO A.L. 2002

OUTTERIDGE N 2002

OWEN A.A. 1994

OWEN B. 1996

OWEN L.R. 1999

OWEN M.R 1998

OXENBOULD C 2004

OXLEY A.O 1967

PAGE AC 2001

PAGE M.R 1991

PALMER B.J. 1996

PALMER CJ 2001

PALMER J.R 1993

PALMER M. 1997

PALMER N.T 1991

PALMER R.M 1994

PARKER J 2001

PARKER R.L 1990

PARKER T. 1998

PARKER W. 2003

PARRY-OKEDEN C.R.U 1998

PARRY-OKEDEN J.M. 2003

PARRY-OKEDEN W.A. 2003

PARSHALL W. 1998

PASSMORE M. 1995

PATEL M. 1999

PATERSON H 2002

PATON F. 1998

PATOS P. 2003

PAUL M.E 1977

PAUL N.J. 1999

PAYNE A.C 1998

PAYNE G.S. 2000

PAYNE H. 1996

PAYNE M. 1996

PEACH A 2003

PEACH I.E. 2003

PEACH J J 2003

PEACH J.J. 2003

PEACH L.I. 2003

PEACOCK G.A 1973

PEARCE B.M. 2003

PEARSON D. 1985

PEARSON I.Y. 2000

PEATY J. 1999

PECK A M 2003

PECK J E 2003

PECKMAN L. 1989

PEGLER J. 1998

PELLEGRINI J. 1994

PELLEGRINI P. 2004

PELLY J. 1997

PENDER DB 2001

PENFOLD A.M 1998

PENFOLD J. 1999

PENFOLD S.J 1989

PENN G 2000

PENTLAND C.J 1987

PENTY A. 1998

PENTY R. 1997

PERINI C 2001

PERINI LJ 2001

PERINI M 2001

PERINI R 1995

PERRY S.B 1962

PERRY T.N 1994

PESCUD D. 1996

PETERS M. 2004

PETERS W.V 1991

PETLEY J. M. 1999

PETZOLD A.O 1977

PFAHL K 2002

PHILLIPS F 2001

PHILLIPS G.B 1993

PHILLIPS M.D 1998

PHILLIPS P.S 1977

PHILLIPS V.M 1998

PICKERING AM 2001

PICKERING AC 2001

PIERCE I 2003

PIERCE R. 1998

PIGGOT L.M 1997

PIGGOTT G H 2001

PIGGOTT R.H. 1997

PIGGOTT S 2000

PILLION R. 1999

PINTER M.D 1991

PIOTROWSKI T 2001

PISANI M 1999

PITCAIRN D.J 1991

PLAIN K P 2003

PLATFORD CA 2002

PLYMPTON A.J. 2003

POINTING A.C 1990

POINTON M.J 1992

POLLACK L.F 1976

POLLOCK J.G 1998

POOLE GJ 2002

PORTER J.M. 1999

PORTER R.A. 1999

PORTER S.I 1994

PORTER W.M. 1999

POTTER C.R. 1994

POULDEN CJ 2001

POULDEN D.B.C 1999

POULDEN IJ 2001

POULDEN S.C. 1999

POULDEN W. 1999

POULDEN WMC 2001

POWELL R.J 1998

POWELL T. 1999

PRATT L 2002

PRESS M.I. 1977

PREST R.L. 2001

PRICE N 2002

PRICHARD P. 1999

PRINCE B. 1993

PRINCE J. 1996

PRINCE L.J. 1996

PRIOR M.A. 1999

PROBERTS R 2000

PROOS G.J. 1996

PROOS H 2001

PROUD S. 2002

PROUDFORD A.E. 2002

PRYER A. 1997

PRYER K.A. 1999

PRYKE M.A. 1995

PSALTIS A.W 1988

PSALTIS B.C 1953

PSALTIS E. 1987

PSALTIS M.M 1963

PSALTIS S.P. 1995

PSALTIS S.L 1994

PUDNEY K. 1999

PURCELL C. 2003

PURCELL O.A 1994

PURCELL R.G 1988

PURVES J. 1999

PURVES S.P 1991

QUICK A.H. 1996

QUICK T.J. 2003

QUINN G.J 1997

QUINN M.J. 1997

QUINN P. 1999

RADEMAKER S. 1999

RAE R E 2001

RAFFERTY M.A 1998

RAGGATT G.L 1991

RAHILLY R.S. 1997

RAINBOW J.P 1992

RAINSFORD T 2003

RAMSAY P.J 1991

RAMSAY R.M 1989

RANKIN B.J 1987

RAPHAEL G 2001

RASMUSSEN J. 1987

RATCLIFF A.E 1962

RATCLIFF L.P 1985

RATCLIFF L 2003

RATHGEB W. 1987

RATNER L.M 1989

RATTEN J.H 1978

RAWLINGS K.A 1994

RAYK C 2003

READ J.H 1966

REDMOND P. 1996

REDMOND P.T. 1996

REDUCKA D.C 1998

REEVES M. 1999

REID A. 1987

REID D 2003

REID D.S 1989

REID N 2002

REID P 2001

REID R. 1998

RENDLE P.M. 2000

REYNOLDS C.W 1987

REYNOLDS G.C 1964

RHODES T. R. 1999

RICE A. 1998

RICH A.F 1979

RICHARDS H 1999

RICHARDS P 2001

RICHARDSON B. 2003

RICHARDSON M.A 1997

RICKARD L.J 1965

RICKARDS AJ 2001

RICKETTS R. 1976

RIDDLE B A 2003

RIDULFO L J A 2001

RIDULFO T J 2001

RIEGL B 1999

RIGG J. 1986

RILEY W.J 1971

RINGROSE J.A 1996

RITCHIE A. 1998

RITCHIE AA 2002

RITCHIE E. 1998

RITCHIE J.J. 2003

RITCHIE M.D 1974

ROACH S.R. 2000

ROBERTS C.I. 1995

ROBERTS E. 1999

ROBERTS J.T 1980

ROBERTS N.S 1994

ROBERTS R.J 1983

ROBERTS S.H. 1998

ROBERTSON B. 1998

ROBERTSON R 2000

ROBINSON B.M. 1999

ROBINSON EA 2001

ROBINSON M.J 1993

ROBINSON M.J. 1994

ROBINSON P.N.C 1998

ROBINSON R. 1986

ROBINSON S. 1999

ROBSON J.M. 2003

ROCK C.W. 2000

ROCKELL C. 2002

RODAN J. 1997

RODGER J. 1999

RODGERS F.S 1958

RODGERS P. 1991

ROE M 1999

ROGERS A 2001

ROGERS B.C. 1998

ROGERS J.R. 2003

ROGERS J.P 1998

ROOKLYN J.H 1983

RORKE C. 1999

ROSE N J 2003

ROSS C.G. 1998

ROSS D R 2002

ROSS E.V 1994

ROSS G.A. 1997

ROSS I.W 1985

ROSS J.B 1967

ROSS J. 2003
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ROSS P.W. 2002

ROSS R.W 1970

ROTH J.S 1981

ROTHSCHILD L.S. 2004

ROTHSCHILD M. 1998

ROTHWELL G.W 1997

ROUMANUS R 2001

ROURKE H.C 1981

ROUVRAY G.J 1971

ROWELL E.S 2001

ROWLAND N.M. 1996

ROWLANDS J. 2003

ROWLES A.P 1988

ROWLEY B.S 1990

ROWLEY P 2001

ROWNTREE G. 1998

ROWORTH J.C 1988

ROXBURGH K.C 1971

ROYLANCE L.J 1998

ROZENAUERS P.M. 2002

RUBIO E 2001

RUMING D.M 1994

RUNOW S. 1987

RUSSELL D. 1996

RUSSELL S.B. 1997

RUSSELL Y 2001

RUTHERFORD J. 1995

RYAN A 2001

RYAN B.C 1976

RYAN C 2001

RYAN F.I 1997

RYAN M. 2003

RYAN N.C 1978

RYAN T.G 2001

RYDGE L.M 1966

RYDGE AM OBE N.B 1964

RYRIE S 2002

SABEY M.D. 2000

SACKELARIOU R.P 1994

SANCHEZ M. 1991

SANDISON J.C 1963

SANTIFORT W.J 1985

SATCHELL D 2000

SAUNDERS H F 2004

SAUNDERS M.H. 2004

SAURIN M.P. 2004

SAVA M.C. 2003

SAVAGE G. 2000

SAVAGE H.A 1991

SAVAGE J. 2000

SAVAGE J. 2000

SAVAGE L. 2000

SAVAGE P.A. 1999

SAYCE W 2001

SCAFFIDI B. 1999

SCALES J.P 1998

SCANLAN C.L 1994

SCANLAN L. 1997

SCHAFFNER G. 1994

SCHEPIS A. 1999

SCHEURER R. 1997

SCHILLER A.M. 1995

SCHILLING B.R. 2002

SCHILLING X.T. 2002

SCHIPPLOCK B.J 1998

SCHMID B.C 1986

SCHMIDT G 2003

SCHULTE P. 2003

SCHULTE P.D. 2003

SCHWAMBERG R 2001

SCHWARZ P 2001.

SCOTT CH 2001

SCOTT H.S 1965

SCOTT J.R 1994

SCOTT M. 1994

SCRIVENOR P.J 1989

SCRIVENOR R.J 1976

SCULLY-POWER P. 1998

SEARY P.J 1998

SEGAERT R.P 1975

SEGAERT S. F. 2003

SEILER K.D 1998

SELBY MJ 2002

SENDES H. 1997

SEWELL P A 2001

SHAFFRAN C.J 1965

SHANNON DR 2001

SHEARER J 2002

SHEEHY B.T 1992

SHEILES D. 1987

SHELDON R S 2001

SHELLEY L. J. 1999

SHEPHERD M 2001

SHEPHERD WD 2001

SHEPPARD J. 1998

SHEPPARD K.D 1990

SHEPPARD S. 1994

SHERIDAN J.Y 1979

SHERIDAN S. 2002

SHERIDAN T 2002

SHERMAN W.G. 1994

SHILLINGTON M.R. 1999

SHIPWAY J.B. 1994

SHIPWAY P. 1972

SHIRBIN J.J. 1996

SHMITH D.H 1965

SHORT A. 1990

SHORT I. 1995

SHORT J. 1989

SHORT M. 2002

SHUTES L. 1995

SILBERSTEIN G. 1989

SILVA M 1999

SIMMER G.E 1987

SIMMONDS JE 2002

SIMON G 2003

SIMON R.J 1998

SIMPSON K.M 1994

SIMPSON T. 1998

SIMS A 2000

SINDLER M 1997

SINGER J.M. 1999

SINGLETON T. 1996

SIRETT G. 1994

SKELLET R. 1994

SKELTON J 2002

SKILLEN D. 1996

SKINNER R R 2001

SKIRVING P.C. 2002

SLINN M J 1995

SLOTBOOM D. 1995

SMALL J 2001

SMART B. 1999

SMART S.G. 1999

SMART T. 1999

SMIDLIN R.J 1986

SMITH A.R. 2003

SMITH A. 1997

SMITH B.P. 1997

SMITH D. 1999

SMITH D.S 1986

SMITH E T 2004

SMITH E 2004

SMITH G.H 1991

SMITH J.F. 2000

SMITH J.N 1993

SMITH J. 1998

SMITH J.B. 1996

SMITH JF 2002

SMITH L 1995

SMITH M.E.H 1998

SMITH M.P. 2003

SMITH N C 2004

SMITH P 2004

SMITH R.J 1989

SMITH R.A 1979

SMITH S.P. 1994

SMITH SA 2001

SMITH W.C 1959

SMYTH G. 2003

SNOW G.R 1971

SNOW M.J 1994

SNOW R F 1995

SNOW R.S 1994

SNOW S. 1999

SOLE K. 1978

SOLLY V.L 1970

SOLOMON E. 1998

SOMERTON D. 1994

SOMERTON R.M. 1994

SOMMER H. 1986

SORENSEN P.C. 2003

SOUTER M.M. 2001

SOUTHAM SE 2002

SPENCE M A 2001

SPENCER B. 1991

SPENCER DR 2001

SPENCER J. 1983

SPENCER J. 1998

SPIES M.B. 1995

SPROULE B.C 1981

SPURGEON C.H 1968

SQUIRES M.D 1993

SRIBER C.J 1988

STACKPOOL J.N 1988

STACKPOOL M.J 1991

STANLEY B.A 1998

STANTON A. 1975

STANYON C.N 1977

STAPLETON L 2001

STARR R. 1998

STECHMANN K.F 1993

STEEL D.G. 1997

STEEL F 1999

STEEL R.W 1985

STEELE W.L 1998

STENING G. 1998

STENING H 2003

STENT G. 1998

STEPHENS B.E 1985

STEPHENSON M.I. 1999

STEPHENSON S.R 1998

STERGOULIS MA 2003

STEVENS J. 2004

STEVENS K.J. 1999

STEVENS R.L 1972

STEVENSON J.S 1996

STEVENSON K. 1986

STEVENSON S.L. 2003

STEVENSON S.O 1982

STEVNS A.S 1993

STEWART A. 2003

STEWART A.B.M. 2002

STEWART G.B 1998

STEWART GJ 2001

STEWART P.W 1994

STEWART R.J 1978

STEWART SM 2001

STEWART S. 1998

STICOVICH J.F 1998

STICPEWICH D.J 1963

STIRLING R. S. 1999

STITZ D A 2003

STODART C 2001

STOECKEL A.B 1991

STOECKEL H.L 1995

STOECKEL M. 1995

STONE G. 1993

STONE R.C. 1998

STORCH D.J 1998

STOREY J.J 1989

STOTT N. 1998

STRACHAN A. 1977

STRACHAN V.M 1998

STRAMAN R 2003

STRANGER J.M 1993

STRATFORD S F 2001

STREETER R. 2003

STREETON W 1999

STRONACH P.N 1984

STRONG J.A. 2004

STRONG J 2004

STRUTT J.W 1981

STUCKEY J.R.M. 2002

STUDLEY J.W. 1995

STURROCK D.G 1981

STURROCK J. 1985

SULSTERS A. 1997

SUTTON A. 1998

SWAINSTON S.J 1997

SWAN G.R. 1996

SWANSON B.J 1965

SWEENEY J 2003

SWEENEY S. 1994

SWEETAPPLE A.M 1981

SYROWATKA AO 2001

SYRROS H. 1991

SZANGOLIES J.A 1991

TABONE M. 1998

TALINTYRE D.I 1997

TARDY-GREEN E. 1993

TARIMO PJ 2001

TAYLOR A.E 1989

TAYLOR C. 1998

TAYLOR D.J. 1996

TAYLOR J.M 1954

TAYLOR K.M. 1999

TAYLOR L. 1997

TAYLOR L 2000

TAYLOR M.K. 2000

TAYLOR P 2000

TAYLOR P.M. 1998

TAYLOR P.A 1997

TAYLOR P.G.R 1999

TELFORD D.M. 1995

TELFORD F. 1998

TERREY N R K 1983

THEODORE J. 1999

THOMAS A 2001

THOMAS E. 1995

THOMAS F.M 1964

THOMAS H 2001

THOMAS H.B. 1999

THOMAS M C 2001

THOMAS P. 1997

THOMAS R.W. 2002

THOMAS W.O 1979

THOMPSON A.M 2002

THOMPSON A. 2004

THOMPSON G.B 1994

THOMPSON P 1982

THOMSON L.R 1985

THOMSON R.E. 1999

THORP E. 2004

THORP S. 1999

TILLEY A 2001
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TIMMS A 2001

TODNER A. 1998

TODNER D.J 1994

TODNER L. 1998

TODNER S. 1998

TOLA C. 1994

TOLLIS G.D. 1995

TOMASZUK P. 1995

TOOHER E.J. 1997

TOOHER-BURRELL T 2003

TOOTH R.M 1984

TORNEY J.A 1990

TOWNSON W. 1997

TRANTER BROWN S 2000

TRAVIA M. 1999

TREHARNE H. 1971

TRELEAVEN A.M. 1994

TRELEAVEN I.A. 1994

TRELEAVEN I.G 1987

TRELEAVEN J.A. 1994

TREMBATH J. 1994

TREMBATH M. 1994

TREMBATH R. 1994

TREMBATH S. 1994

TRENERRY J.B 1980

TRESIDDER R.W 1987

TROTTER R.B 1998

TROUP C.A 1978

TROUP P.J. 1995

TRUMAN B.F. 2002

TRUSTY M J 2003

TSUKAHARA S. 1995

TUCKER B J 2002

TUCKER M.R. 2003

TUCKEY K.S 1995

TUISK G.K 1986

TUISK U.U 1985

TURNER D.R. 1996

TURNER K.W. 2000

TURNER R.E 1973

TURNER S.J 1991

TURNER S 2002

TWIBILL A.K 1991

TYREE A.W 1964

ULLRICH S. 1999

ULM D.J. 1994

UMEMOTO H. 1991

URRY D.C. 2000

VAARZON MOREL T.M 1976

VALE J.A 1984

VAN DER GRIEND M. 1990

VAN EWIJK D.A 1984

VAN GELDER J.P 1979

VAN HEYST A.M. 1994

VAN KRETSCHMAR J.C.H 1983

VAN KRETSCHMAR M.  1998

VAN'T HOF B. 1995

VANDENBERG Y 2000

VANDERWILT D.R. 1999

VAUGHAN GM 2003

VAVRICA I. 1999

VEINIMAE S 2004

VENABLES S. J. 1999

VERE NICOLL JW 2002

VERSI C. 1998

VERSI C. 1998

VERSI G. 1998

VERSI P 1995

VIDOR  AM E. 1975

VINCENT C.J. 2002

VINCENT L.F. 2002

VIQUERAT A.D 1998

VOLCKMAR F 2001

VOLZ P. 2003

VOORDERHAKE B. 1997

VOORDERHAKE C. 1997

VOORDERHAKE D.P 1997

VOORDERHAKE D. 1993

VOORDERHAKE R. 1997

WADE D.B.G 1994

WADE K 2002

WAGER PJ 2001

WAIN BR 2001

WAINWRIGHT O. 1989

WAITSMAN A 2002

WAITSMAN D. 2002

WALDTHAUSEN G. 1990

WALKER C.A. 2003

WALKER E.J. 2002

WALKER I.H.C 2002

WALKER L. 1997

WALKER M.M. 1995

WALKER SMITH D.F 1978

WALL P.A. 1999

WALL S.H. 1997

WALSH D.J 1981

WALSH E 2000

WALSH M. 2000

WALSH P.J. 1976

WALSH S.E 1998

WALSH V.M 1965

WALTON J.S 1970

WALTON J. 1995

WARD J 2001

WARDLEY E. S. 1999

WARN J. 1956

WARN P. 1956

WARNER J.H. 2002

WASHINGTON T 2003

WASSELL J.R 1994

WATERS J H 2001

WATERS M 2001

WATERS M 2002

WATKINS W.A. 1998

WATSON A. 1996

WATSON B. 1995

WATSON G 2001

WATSON J.O 1986

WATSON R 2001

WEBB A. 1996

WEBB A.L 1989

WEBB R.A 1992

WEBB W.P 1984

WEBER M. 1999

WEDDERBURN F.M. 2003

WEDDERBURN P.J 1998

WEDDERBURN S.W. 2003

WEDDERBURN W.W. 2003

WEGG G.H. 1994

WEILEY A. F. 1999

WEILEY J.F. 1996

WEIR A.B. 2000

WEIR J.L.C 2000

WEIR R.A. 1996

WEIR S 2002

WEISE G. 1997

WELSH B.L. 2003

WENHAM A.T 1981

WEST N J S 2003

WEST P 2002

WEST R.J.S 1984

WHALAN R. 1998

WHARINGTON G. 1998

WHEELHOUSE J.S. 2000

WHELAN A. 1999

WHISTON JM.G 1998

WHISTON N.A 1998

WHISTON S.J 1998

WHITBOURN M.G 1998

WHITBY M J 2001

WHITE G 2001

WHITE M.S. 1995

WHITE M 2003

WHITFELD M 2001

WHITFIELD C.E. 1999

WHITFIELD P. 1992

WHITFIELD T. 1994

WHITFORD P R 2001

WHITINGTON R 2001

WHITTAKER L R 2002

WHITWORTH A. 1995

WHYTE D.J. 1999

WIESENER A. 1996

WIGGIN D. 1999

WILCOX L 2000

WILCOX PL 2003

WILCOX R 2000

WILDE D.R.A 2001

WILDE P. 1994

WILDE SP 2001

WILKENS W.H. 2001

WILKINSON M 2001

WILKINSON P. 2003

WILL S.P 1977

WILLIAMS A.J. 2003

WILLIAMS C.R 1994

WILLIAMS E. 1998

WILLIAMS J.S 1994

WILLIAMS K.C. 2002

WILLIAMS L.P 1994

WILLIAMS L.F 1998

WILLIAMS M.B 1988

WILLIAMS O.F 1998

WILLIAMS P.E 1990

WILLIAMS R. 1995

WILLIAMS RP 2001

WILLIAMS R.T 1958

WILLIAMS S 2001

WILLIAMS T 2000

WILLIAMSON H.F.A 2000

WILLIAMSON-NOBLE J.C. 2002

WILLMOT A.F. 2003

WILLS R.M 1986

WILMOT A 2002

WILMOT J.M. 2002

WILSON C.J 1989

WILSON D.L 1993

WILSON D.C.E 1995

WILSON D.J 1993

WILSON D. 1992

WILSON D.G 1998

WILSON F. 1982

WILSON I. 1997

WILSON I R 1995

WILSON L.R 1994

WILSON L. 1990

WILTON R.N. 1996

WINGROVE IT 2002

WINKLER M. 1996

WINKLER P.A 1973

WINKLER R. 1996

WINKLER S 2000

WINNING J.M. 1995

WINNING J R 1995

WINNING J.W 1984

WINNING K.J. 1995

WINNING R.H 1984

WISE C. 1993

WISE E C 2002

WISE T.J 1980

WITHNELL R.E. 1994

WITTENOOM R.J. 1999

WITTEY NG 2002

WOLFENSBERGER M.L 1986

WOLFENSBERGER U. 1998

WOLFF M. 1999

WOO D. 1994

WOOD A.J 2004

WOOD C.W.S 1987

WOOD G.T 2003

WOOD J.B 1984

WOODRUFF J.P 1998

WOODS C.J. 2003

WOODS G 2003

WOODS M.A 1981

WRAGBY A 2001

WRAGBY R.K. 1996

WRIGHT DB 2002

WRIGHT W.H 1975

WUHRER J. 1984

WYATT R.A.R. 2003

WYMAN K. 1994

WYNN J.W 1983

WYNN P 1999

WYNNE R.J 1991

WYNTER L 2003

WYNTER M.R. 2003

WYNYARD S. 1999

YAFFA M.D. 1999

YANEZ M. 1998

YATES DL 2001

YEM D. 1981

YIM T. 1992

YORK J. 1952

YORK S. 1986

YORK AOM M. 1945

YOUMANS R.A 2003

YOUNG D.M. 1999

YOUNG J 1998

YOUNG K. 1992

ZEHNDER P.M.J. 1995

ZEMANEK M 2003

ZEMANEK S 2001

ZIDAREW R.W. 1995

ZIMMERMAN E. 1998

ZUZZA P. 1998
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PREF No Vessel Name Owner Name Design

4079 40 SOMETHING OWEN KELLY BENETEAU 42CC
4600 A BIENTOT JOHN S WALTON OCEANIS 461
7700 ABOUT TIME JULIAN FARREN-PRICE COOKSON 12

AUS 193 ADIOS III JOHN BAGSHAW INTL DRAGON
6107 ADRIA CHRISTOPHER GORMAN J44

GRE 55 AERA N F LYKIARDOPULO KER 55
RQ 58 AFR MIDNIGHT RAMBLER ED PSALTIS / BOB THOMAS FARR 40 OD

5148 AGENT 88 PETER & PAULINE REDMOND YOUNG 88
8080 AHOY DENISE VAN EWIJK / JOHN MORRISEY SLOOP
4970 AKELA AKELA SYNDICATE JUTSON

AKUBRA PATRICK  WILDE
5949 ALCYONE JOHN B SMITH JEANNEAU
4660 ALIBI JOKES SYNDICATE S111
407 ALLUSIVE JACK FINDLAY LYONS 47
6197 AMANTE DENNIS COOPER SYDNEY 36
5665 AMON RA NICHOLAS JONES FARR 1104

NOR 2 ANDREW SHORT MARINE ANDREW SHORT VOLVO 60
5106 ANNA GEORGE SIRETT / ROBERT GILLIES NORTHERNER 28

SM 2 ANOTHER CHALLENGE LOU ABRAHAMS SYDNEY 38 OD
1117 ANTARES RICHARD GRUBB CONTESSA

MH 2000 ANTEATER PHIL HEARSE SLOOP
500 ANTIPODES AUSTRALIA GREG NEWTON BENETEAU 47.7
6352 AQUATICUS DAVID STITZ SUNFAST 37

A 101 ARCHINA BILL FERRIS / JOSEPH SKRZYNSKI KETCH
A 173 ARINDA MICHAEL WYNTER CARVEL SLOOP

9999 ASSASSIN ROBIN CRAWFORD IMS FARR 40
SYD 2 ATOMIC DENIS O’NEIL HARBOUR RACER

8150 ATTITUDE ROBERT HUNT OFFSHORE 350
AUDACIOUS JOE CHADWICK SWANSON

6091 AWAY AWAY PHILIP GOYMOUR HANSE 371
181 AZZURA MALCOLM EDWARDS GRAND SOLEIL 38
7350 B.Y.O. DAVID TURNER CAVALIER 350 SL
5080 BARNACLE BILL JOHN PELLIGRINI NORTHSHORE 27
4423 BASKA ALLAN RICH

GBR 2566 BELLA GIOIA JOHN & KAREN SWAN 40
SYD 181 BERANI VII DAVID TODNER JARKAN 12.5

3838 BERGENSKE JOHN BROOKS / JACK CHRISTOPHERSON NORTHSHORE 38
371 BERRIMILLA ALEX WHITWORTH BROLGA 33
6767 BIG BLUE BOB & ANN PENTY BENETEAU 38s5
6363 BIG KAHUNA DEAN HARRIGAN BENETEAU 53s5
5962 BLACKJACK BRUCE RANKIN SUN ODYSSEY 40

AUS 197 BLACKJACK PACIFIC SAILING SCHOOL J24
3302 BLIND JUSTICE STEPHEN O’HALLORAN CAVALIER 28
6006 BLUE CHIP KARLSTECHMANN / PETER MASON SYDNEY 38
6233 BLUE PETER GREG STEWART / VERONICA STRACHAN BENETEAU OCEANIS 35
4 BOARDROOM JOHN & KIM CLINTON BENETEAU 473

Y-AUS 42 BONNY J & P WARN INTL YNGLING
1616 BORN FREE WALTER RATHGAB SLOOP

BRIGADOON DARYL ISLES HOOD 23
1987 BRIGHT MORNING STAR RANDAL WILSON CRUISER/RACER
4543 BRIGUS PUBLIC PRIVATE PARTNERSHIPS PL S111
111 BRINDABELLA HAMISH LINDSAY ENDEAVOUR  24
3994 BRINDABELLA JANE STRANGER ADVENTURE 7

C 1 BRINDABELLA GEORGE SNOW IMS MAXI
KA 294 BROLGA MALCOLM & MARK ANDERSON E22

8848 BROOMSTICK CRANITCH/WALLACE OPEN 60
BULLANT ROUGE COLIN ALLECK S & S 34

7441 BUMBLE BEE 5 JOHN DIETER KAHLBETZER SLOOP
8301 CADENZA GUNNAR & ULLI TUISK FARR 50
7379 CADIZ IAN TRELEAVEN BENETEAU OCEANIS 473
7777 CALIBRE GEOFF BONUS / NICK BARHAM SYDNEY 38
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5877 CALLISTA TIM FLAHVIN BENETEAU  40.7
930 CALYPSO R TOOTH / E GRAHAM / R CLARK NORTHSHORE 33
8 CAMP EDEN/CHRISTIE CORP YOUTH SAILING ACADEMY ELLIOTT 6.0

Y-AUS 25 CANNY J & P WARN INTL YNGLING
6278 CAPELLA RICHARD HUTCHESON BAVARIA 36
9009 CAPRIA PAUL HYLAND BENETEAU 40.7
13 CAPRICE OF HUON DAVID CHAMPTALOUP CLASSIC
567 CARLA M MARK MICHALEWSKI BENETEAU 47.7
3040 CARNAVAL M TABONE / BERNIE VAN T’HOFF SANTANA 30

CARPE DIEM NEVILLE CHRISTIE COTTEE 56
5438 CARTWHEEL RUSSELL DEBNEY CARTER 33
4392 CASABLANCA STEPHEN ROACH NORTHSHORE 38
317 CATALINA JOHN McKIM AM CATALINA 34
26 CENTREFOLD BRIAN FOLBIGG S & S
5984 CHAMPAGNE ON ICE PHIL & NADA DICKINSON BENETEAU 50

CHENONETTA CATHRYN DIXON GAFF
611 CHINA BEAR A G CLUBB RH 52
5894 CHINA DOLPHIN STAN MAY CUTTER
8350 C-HORSE JOHN SMITH CAVALIER 350 SL
3797 CHRISTINA III RICHARD CHRISTIAN CAVALIER 28
668 CHUBASCO DAVID COLFELT CLANSMAN

AUS 208 CLANDESTINE SCOTT RYRIE 11 METRE OD
4 CLUB MARINE YOUTH SAILING ACADEMY ELLIOTT 6.0

CLUBMAN RAY STONE
5845 COCOMO PETER & LAURA TAYLOR SYDNEY 36
3720 COLAC BAY RAYMOND COLLETT ENDURANCE

CONFUSION ROBERT SMITH
CONVICTS REVENGE STEPHEN GIRDIS J24

5868 CORINTHIAN DOORS RICHARD PERINI FARR 40 OD
COTE D’AZURE JAMES PEACH BENETEAU

5886 CROSSING BRUCE MARSHALL
5578 CUT LOOSE ROB McCONCHIE ADAMS 13
6211 CYDON LEON CHRISTIANIS SYDNEY 38
8412 CYRENE 3 MIKE SELBY / ELENA WISE X412
2455 DANDELION MURRAY OWEN / JENNY KINGS CAVALIER 36
5803 DANISCOT EARL ERLING DUFOUR 41 CLASSIC
89 DAYS LIKE THIS ARTHUR PSALTIS / A OTTO / J ROSS BENETEAU  35.1
5485 DEBONAIR ERIC FRANK CAVALIER 350 SL
678 DESANNA STEPHEN McBURNIE CARTER 33

DESPERADO ALASTAIR SMITH BENETEAU OCEANIS 39
6660 DEVILS ADVOCATE MARK DONELLY / ANDREW BARNES CAVALIER 28
6083 DON’T BLINK DR MICHAEL DELANEY SYDNEY 38

KA 5300 DRAKES PRAYER TED CRIMMINGS FARR 43
777 ECLIPSE DAVID GOUGH BUIZEN 48

EDWENA EDWARD BYRNE SLOOP
6159 EIDELWEISS NELL PAYNE FOLKBOAT
8105 EIS KAI JACOBSEN NORTHSHORE 38
144 ELECTRA JOHN KEELTY COLE 43
6153 ELECTRA PAUL GILL SYDNEY 41
5 ELLIOTT 6 YOUTH SAILING ACADEMY ELLIOTT 6.0
9 ELLIOTT 6 YOUTH SAILING ACADEMY ELLIOTT 6.0
6117 ENTICER IAN JONES 11M
248 ERICA J LES GOODRIDGE 8 METRE
8181 ESPRESSO FORTE LAURENCE FREEDMAN RACER/CRUISER
6037 EUREKA II ROBERT ROBERTSON SYDNEY 60
4557 EXCESS WARWICK MILLER EUREKA
6375 EXETER JOHN COLLINGWOOD-SMITH SUN ODYSSEY 43
6210 FABULOUS ACTION PETER BAVIN ADAMS 35
915 FAIR WINDS WILLIAM SMITH KETCH

FARGO CLIVE MAGAWON CLIPPER 361
FARROCIOUS MICHAEL WILLIAMS FARR 1020

338 FAST COMPANY RALPH GUDERJAHN YOUNG  88
M 66 FELICE FELICE SYNDICATE NORTHSHORE 38

6412 FERGUS RENEE WILLIAMSON-NOBLE X YACHT 42
A 50 FIRETEL BOB LAWLER CARTER 33

FIU IVO ORLIC GRAND SOLEIL 46
B 11 FLICKA GARRY LINACRE HMG 30

4765 FLOATING CHARGE DAVID ANDREWS NORTHSHORE 31
Q 1 FLYING SAUCER MARK & ANNE ANDERSON MOTOR SAILOR

6385 FORESHORE DON YOUNG NSX
645 FORTLET JOHN MACONOCHIE KETCH
7314 FORZADO GEOFFERY PHILLIPS FARR 1020
4400 FOUR SEASONS HARCOURT GOUGH CUTTER
7277 FRACTIOUS TIM DEVLIN BENETEAU 27.7
6044 FRANCESCA BRENT CARR JEANNEAU
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5788 FREE WILLIAM IRELAND BENETEAU 42s7
6347 FREE SPIRIT DAVID MARSHALL CRUISING YACHT
8885 FREE SPIRIT STEPHEN GIRDIS JEANNEAU SUNFAST 52
3195 FRESCA TIM PARKER NORTHSHORE 27

FREYA JOHN SINGER SLOOP
R 10 FROTH & BUBBLE NATHAN SMITH YOUNG 780
AUS 142 FRUITCAKES FELIX MARKS J24

5980 FUTURE SHOCK RON ELLIS ELLIOTT 56
6351 GAME SET ANTHONY KIRBY BAVARIA 38
6333 GEORGIA EXPRESS IAN GUANARIA MUMM 36
5484 GONDWANA PETER EDWARDS ROBERTSON 950
6343 GREAT XPECTATIONS ROD WILLS X 43
6158 GRUMPS RAINER GRIEBEL BAVERIA
3976 GUSTO HUGH DENISON CAVALIER
4173 HALF HOUR PAUL HENDRY HALF TONNER

HAVANA JOHN JAMIESON SLOOP
HAWKEYE LEO GULLEY CUTTER

4208 HEWLETT PACKARD FARR LAP FARR LAPSYNDICATE FARR 37
9797 HIDDEN AGENDA GRAHAM GIBSON SYDNEY38
2557 HOGSBREATH  WITCHDOCTOR RUM CONSORTIUM DAVIDSON 42
2125 HOO HA PETER HOWES HALVORSEN 25
1805 HOODOO JAN KENNEDY HOOD
115 HOODWINKED NOEL O’BRIEN HOOD 23
404 HORNBLOWER PETER CAMPBELL / ROBIN BRADSHAW BONBRIDGE 27
6271 HUBCAP HERMAN HEILIGERS BENETEAU

AUS 1084 HUMPBACK STEPHEN BARLOW ETCHELLS
AUS 201 HYPER-ACTIV SIMON LAVERS J24

8880 ICHI BAN MATT ALLEN FARR 52 OD
6038 ICHI BAN MATT ALLEN FARR 40 OD

GER 4014 ILLBRUCK VI STEFAN JACOB / IAIN MURRAY V.O 60
4929 INFINITY II SABRINA SNOW BENETEAU 45
5474 INFINITY III MARTIN JAMES FARR 65
6360 INTEGRITY ANDREW STOECKEL FIRST 42s7
3209 INVADER ANTHONY WEBB EASTCOAST
299 IRREPRESSIBLE JOHN WARNER ETCHELLS
1390 JABS BRAD STEPHENS CONTESSA 25
5861 JACOBINA PHILLIP MELLOR JUTSON 950

AUS 148 JAGGED EDGE LEON RATNER J24
4923 JAPARA PAT GUNNING COLE 30

USA 175 JAWS STAN HALES 11MTR
GBR 4519L JAZZ CHRIS BULL J145

2210 JAZZED UP EDWARD DERMODY BUIZEN 40
5531 JESSIE STEVE HUDSON BROLGA 33

JUICY FRUIT GEOFF FOLEY S 80
AUS 354 JUST A DASH PETER DASH E22

6330 JUST A DASH OR TWO PETER DASH NORTHSHORE 370
18 KAI LAG MAURICE DRENT LUGGER
3401 KAIYU OWEN THOMAS LION
2682 KARISMA JOHN MANSON 1TON
6215 KAT IAN AWFORD BENETEAU
2837 KATINKA DES O’CONNELL CURRAWONG
7878 KAYLE(KAZ) DAVID PESCUD LYONS 54
3689 KINDAMINDI GRAEME FRASER CARTER 33

B 23 KINGURRA PETER JOUBERT BLACK SWAN 43
5417 KIRRALAA VINCENT MUNRO CAVALIER 28

PH 70 KOEL ROBERT RAE
8883 KOKOMO LANG WALKER FARR 40 OD
9003 KRAKATOA ROD SKELLET YOUNG SUPER 30
9 KYEEMA DENNIS O’NEILL 9 METRE
4584 LA VELA CHRIS PENTLAND BENETEAU
5407 LADY ANN JOHN & ANN KIRKJIAN JARKAN 38
131 LAHARA KI & DAVID DOUGLAS
133 LAROOL TJERK DUSSELDORP 30 SQUARE
3782 LARRIKIN JOHN WEILEY NAUT 33
8832 LARRIKIN ROSS GLASSON / RICHARD HARPER SYDNEY 32
717 L’ATTITUDE JOHN BARTER DEHLER 41DS
6273 LAZY JACK J A MCINTYRE BAVARIA
4896 L’EAU COMMOTION GRANT POLLOCK NORTHSHORE 38
3964 LITTLE DARLING WILHELMINA GARDNER NORTHSHORE 27

LITTLE G PATRICK BROUGHTON ETCHELLS
3144 LOKI STEPHEN AINSWORTH SWAN 48

A 156 LOLITA NICHOLAS CASSIM WOODEN SLOOP
3382 LORAY II RAY BROOKS TOP HAT 25 MK III

SYD 1 LORITA MARIA NORMAN RYDGE BENETEAU 47.7
3383 LOTUS ARTHUR EADY LOTUS 10.6
294 LOVE & WAR PETER KURTS SLOOP
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4755 MADADAM DAMIAN BANKS ADAMS 8
5030 MAGIC PUDDING 2ND SLICE JOHN SIMMONDS JEANNEAU
3687 MAGNETIC NORTH RICHARD HAMMOND CAVALIER
946 MAGNUM ROBERT WILTON BOUNTY 35
353 MARGARET RINTOUL BRUCE GOULD YAWL
2170 MARGARET RINTOUL II RICHARD PURCELL SLOOP

SYD 5 MARGARET RINTOUL V STAN EDWARDS FRERS  60
780 MARIS IAN KIERNAN TASMAN SEABIRD
4715 MARLOO GEORGE GIRDIS JARKAN
4099 MARTINET GARY CASSIM BENETEAU FIRST 29
6397 MATIKA JONATHON GOWLAND SLOOP

AUS 202 MAVERICK PACIFIC SAILING SCHOOL J24
1626 MAZURY BRUCE NAIL SWANSON 36
257 MEDINA ERVIN VIDOR BENETEAU
1224 MERCEDES IV PETER STRONACH ONE OFF
8679 MERIT DAVID GOTZE VOLVO 60
5757 MERLOT EDWARD TOOHER BENETEAU
2260 MERRY MAC LESLIE McCLEAN CLANSMAN
2993 MIDNIGHT LACE ANTHONY EGINTON NAUT 33

A 8 MIRRABOOKA JOHN BENNETTO 47’ SLOOP
8882 MOONSHADOW V LLOYD BENNETT DUNCANSON O’SHORE
8402 MORE WITCHCRAFT JOHN CAMERON EAGLE 46
6268 MORNING CALM KEN McKENZIE NORTHSHORE34
5762 MORVRAN 4 ERIC LAVALOU BENETEAU FIRST 33.7
9407 MR BEAKS RIBS DAVID BEAK BENETEAU 40.7
4556 MR BOJANGLES WARREN & WILLIAM GROUNDS NORTHSHORE 38
4960 MRX JOHN SHORT / MILES  BASTICK FARR 34 MRX
1 MUSTO YOUTH SAILING ACADEMY ELLIOTT 6.0
4040 NADIA IV TEKI DALTON IOR FARR 40
3111 NAND IV RICHARD CHAPMAN SALAR 40
1949 NANTUCKET LINDSAY BROWN NANTUCKET 31
5482 NAUGHTY CALL GREGG WATSON ROBERTSON 950
4377 NAUTICA FOOTWEAR/LUNCH ON SUNDAY DANIEL MASSEY / CHRIS BOWLING CAPE 31
33 NERIDA SIR JAMES HARDY CUTTER
6111 NEVER A DULL MOMENT COLIN WILSON MACKMAN/LYONS
6081 NEXT NEXT SYNDICATE SYDNEY 38

SWE 11111 NICORETTE LUDDE INGVALL IRC MAXI
5995 NIPS-N-TUX HOWARD DE TORRES IMX 40

M 5894 NO FIXED ADDRESS PHILLIP KING TRAILER SAILER
3767 NO MERCY MICHAEL McNELLIS 36’ SLOOP
6095 NO OPTIONS DARRYL HODGKINSON SYDNEY 38

AUS 180 NOKOMIS GEOFF COWEN J24
5857 NORTH STAR PETER THOMAS NORTHSHORE

AUS 368 NORTH SYDNEY STATION ED McCARTHY E22
NORTHERN LADY JOHN & PENNY READ COUGAR CAT

226 NYORA TRACEY CARPENTER / GRAHAM EVANS SLOOP
2999 OBSESSION PETER MOONEY SYDNEY 38
8008 OCCASIONAL COARSE LANGUAGE WARWICK SHERMAN COOKSON 12

TYC 101 OCEAN FREEWAY CHARLES BOOTH
2953 OLYMPUS OLYMPUS SYNDICATE S & S 34

OMAR KHAYYAM RICHARD & RENA PARKER NANTUCKET ISLAND
5673 ON Y VA RAY CRAIGIE ROBERTSON 950

ONE CROWDED HOUR JOHN HARRIS PALM BEACH 36
5530 ONE STEP AHEAD DENNIS McDONALD FARR 40 OD
328 OPUS III RON FALSON KETCH
2874 OSPREY III JOHN & DIANE LAMB MOTTLE 33
544 OUT OF SIGHT MATTHEW WILKINSON MASRM 920
6185 OUTSIDE CHANCE BARRIE ELSBURY BENETEAU 40.7
6293 OUTSIDE CHANCE BARRIE ELSBURY SWAN 48

AUS 200 PACATACK PACIFIC SAILING SCHOOL J24
97 PACHA JOSE DE LA VEGA CAMPER & NICHOLSON
1752 PACIFIC LEA PACIFIC SAILING SCHOOL BLAZER
734 PACIFIC ROCK PACIFIC SAILING SCHOOL BLAZER
736 PACIFIC ROLL PACIFIC SAILING SCHOOL BLAZER

PANACEA RICK WILCOX BENETEAU 40.7
5438 PANACHE DENNIS KRAWCHUK LAVRANOS 36
6407 PANACHE WILLIAM HALL STEWART 34

AUS 8001 PANTHER STEPHEN O’ROURKE FARR 40 OD
5447 PAPILLON JOHN ROTH SUNSET 750
3788 PATRICIA J PATRICIA COX NORTHSHORE 27
329 PEGASUS WILLIAM STREETON ENDEAVOUR 32
5164 PENDRAGON ANDREW COCHRANE STEWART 34
2968 PENZANCE BRUCE CALDWELL ADAMS 31

M 669 PHOEBE CELESTE HARRY HOUSE ROZINANTE
5926 PINOT EDWARD TOOHER MOTTLE 33
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PINTA BRYAN DIGGES BENETEAU
5251 PIPEDREAM MARK McELLIGOTT DEHLER TOP 34
533 PIPPIN D & A TAYLOR FARR 37
7623 PLABA IV BRUNO GAMBACORTI 1/2 TON
5269 PLUS 16 THOMAS & LUCA RIDOLFO FARR 11.6

US 20 PLYM NEVILLE CRICHTON
6344 POPPY MICHAEL & VIRGINIA PHILLIPS GIB SEA
3678 PRELUDE CYRIL LATIMER TOP HAT MKIII
8924 PRETTY FLY II COLIN & GLADYS WOODS BENETEAU 47.7
7447 PRIMETIME DAVID MASON BENETEAU 44.7
4582 PRIVATEER BILL MIROW BENETEAU
120 PROSPECTOR GREG JOHNSTON CUTTER
3288 QUAMBI JUSTIN PELLY CAVALIER 28

AUS 893 QUEEN ANNES REVENGE MICHAEL BELLINGHAM ETCHELLS
6606 QUEST ROBERT STEEL NELSON MAREK 46
609 QUETZAL BRIAN CLAYTON NANTUCKET 31
10 QUIET LITTLE DRINK YOUTH SAILING ACADEMY ELLIOTT 6.0
1272 RABELAIS PHILLIP MILLS COLUMBIA 33
2532 RACY LADY ANDREW LUKAS S 80

AUS 70 RAGAMUFFIN SYD FISCHER FARR 50
4684 RAINBOW JOHN ROBERTS NORTHSHORE 38

AUS 1191 RANGOON TIGER CHRIS GRUBB ETCHELLS
5588 RAPSCALLION DICK VOODERHAKE FARR 40 OD

AUS 325 RAZORS EDGE RAY STONE ETCHELLS
4337 RELISH IV BILL BAILEY CRUISING SLOOP

E 16 ROB ROY MICHAEL YORK ETCHELLS
2552 ROONIE BRADSHAW KELLETT / VICTORIA COWDREY TASAR
3999 RUMBLE FISH JOHN BROWN IOR FARR 40

RUSH CUTTER NICHOLAS RYAN
3303 RUTHLESS PETER HILL FARR
6186 S.Y LA TORTUGITA BRIAN JAMES FARR 9.2
6206 SABBATICAL JEFFREY BURGESS CAVALIER 32
800 SAGA GARY APPLEBY NANTUCKET 33
8575 SAGACIOUS II LANCE WILLIAMS NANTUCKET 43
4643 SAHARA JOHN BOX NORTHSHORE 27

KA 113 SAILPAC PACIFIC SAILING SCHOOL J24
190 SALACIA II ARTHUR BYRNE MH SLOOP
5826 SALT SHAKER PETER FRANKI SYDNEY 36
2114 SAMIEL ALAN STANTON SLOOP
6110 SAMSKARA BRAD GARLICK BENETEAU 47.7

SANA DAVID MATHLIN ONE OFF
1770 SARABANDE BASIL DIETHELM SWAN 44
108 SARAH SUE IAN PLATT-HEPWORTH
2449 SASS A R REID QTR TON
7744 SAVOIR FAIRE MALCOLM ROE BENETEAU 47.7
9582 SCIMITAR KIRSTEN GRAF
5879 SEA-CHANGE MICHAEL BELAKHOV SYDNEY 36

KA 42 SECOND WIND MARK HOLLINGSWORTH / PETER MACDONALD CONVERTED ETCHELLS
2560 SECRETS IAN BRADDOCK COMPASS
3347 SERENITY MICHAEL ELLIOTT MOTTLE 33
8844 SERIOUSLY TEN JOHN WOODRUFF / ERIC ROBINSON / SHAUN JAMES VOLVO 60
9412 SEXTANT DENIS DOYLE / LYNNE SMITH X YACHT

M 307 SHADOWFAX COLIN FRANKLIN CATAMARAN
4924 SHE II PETER RODGERS MULL 40
9477 SHERE KHAN RICHARD WYATT BENETEAU
6226 SHIRALEE ROBERT & SUE SEGAERT BENETEAU OCEANIS 473
2222 SHOGUN JOHN LOW HOLLAND
209 SHONA BILL FERRIS / JOSPEH SKRZYNSKI SLOOP

SHOPKEEPER GARRIE TOLIS
8081 SHORT CIRCUIT GUY STENING JS 8000

AUS 325 SILKY ANTHONY HIRST E22
SILVER DAWN DAVID SHMITH MOTOR CRUISER

4409 SILVER SPRAY II PETER CASEY NORTHSHORE
9990 SINTARA GORDON ANDERSON BENETEAU 42s7

SIROCCO LEE BOUERI OCEANIS 35
208 SKEAN DHU E D (TED) ROBERTS CLANSMAN

AUS 124 SLACK ALICE KEITH SHEPPARD J24
6040 SMILE SIMON WHISTON FARR 40 OD
5892 SOBRAON ROBIN & KAY HYETT BENETEAU
5244 SOLUS BERNARD ALLECK STELLA
700 SOMMERBREEZE HANS SOMMER CAVALIER 350SL
38 SOUTHERLY DON MICKLEBOROUGH SLOOP
1770 SOUTHERN STAR JOHN ANTHONY CALVERT-JONES FARR 40 OD
6205 SPAR WARS RODERICK WEST HALF TONNER
2020 SPEARHEAD TRIBAL SYNDICATE ADAMS 1050
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4113 SPEEDWELL COLIN GEEVES YOUNG 88
2470 SPIDER MIKE AUSTIN UFO34

SPINDRIFT PETER LYNCH
AUS 21 SPIRIT IAIN MURRAY / STEFFAN JACOB IACC

4869 SPIRIT OF DEFIANCE JENS RASMUSSSEN DEFIANCE 30
AUS 154 STAMPED URGENT R & E ROSS J24

760 STARBUCK MAX DOWLING
5132 STARSTRUCK DAVEAU KEN DAVIS JEANNEAU ONE DESIGN
8833 STING TERRY MULLENS FARR 49
508 STORMY PETREL KEVIN O’SHEA S & S
6188 STREWTH GEOFFREY HILL MKL 49
8585 SUMMERCLOUD II RICHARD MOORE MOTTLE
6279 SUMMERSALT RICHARD LAVERS

L 55 SUNDOWNER WILLIAM WEBB
6326 SUNSHINE JOHN KIRBY SUN ODYSSEY 45.2

SUNSHINE MCKENZIE OLIVER KETCH
9900 SUPERFINE GEORGE WALDTHAUSEN SLOOP
1295 SURAYA CARL SRIBER S & S
608 SWEET CHARIOT IV DAVID HENRY BUIZEN 48
6073 SWISH STEVEN PROUD / WILL HUTCHINSON SYDNEY 38
6070 SYDNEY CHARLES CURRAN SYDNEY 60
3 SYDNEY YACHTS YOUTH SAILING ACADEMY ELLIOTT 6.0
193 SYONARA GREG MAUGHAM SWANSON
4502 TAKAFAIRE PETER WINKLER COLUMBIA
114 TAKE TIME GRAHAM H SMITH BROLGA
6999 TALON ALAN KENDALL BENETEAU

A 64 TAMARIS DR B SPROULE CLASSIC
626 TANAMI 626 MARKETING COLE 40
3569 TANGLEFOOT ROSS MARR
1247 TASHTEGO PATRICIA MINTER HALVERSON 41
638 TAWARRI II CHRIS IACONO CARBINEER
3838 TEQUILA SUNRISE JOHN BROOKS / JACK CHRISTOFFERSEN NORTHSHORE 38
4100 TERRA FIRMA NICHOLAS BARTELS / MARTIN VAUGHAN MURRAY 41
29 THE RED HAND GRAHAM O’NEILL MURRAY
3790 TICKALARA NORMAN LIVERMORE PHANTOM 32
2720 TIM-NICK LESLIE COSGROVE TOP HAT
2 TOLL YOUTH SAILING ACADEMY ELLIOTT 6.0
5103 TONIC ALAN GREEN OLSEN 40

MH 109 TOUCH OF GOLD K J (ACE) MOWTELL SLOOP
6014 TOUCHE ROBERT SHELDON BENETEAU 31.7

TRADITION PETER BUSH HANS CHRISTIAN 41
AUS 28 TRAFFIC JAM DONALD MAXWELL J24

7477 TRIESTE PETER VERSI BENETEAU FIRST 47.7
6223 TRIM RICHARD JOHN SMIDLIN NORTHSHORE 369
191 TRINITY ROSS ADAMS J24
6 TRIPLE M YOUTH SAILING ACADEMY ELLIOTT 6.0

TRU BLU CHARLES GRACE IOR HALF TON
M 1014 UBS WILD THING GEOFF LAVIS INGLIS/MURRAY 50

10043 UCANTTAKEITWITHYOU JOHN STUCKEY SUNFAST 43
7600 UTOPIA JOHN MESSENGER SYDNEY 38
1510 VANESSA III KIM JAGGAR
6377 VANGUARD RICHARD CAWSE LYONS / CAWSE 46
61 VARUNA DR JOHN MUSGROVE RANGER
4688 VASCO DE GRANGA MICHAEL GRANGER YOUNG 88

KA 37 VICTORY BAR BRUCE ROWLEY SOLING
4650 VIRTIQUE SCOT LAWSON CAV 28
5900 WAHOO BRIAN EMERSON FRERS 40

YC 222 WAR GAMES DAVID C URRY FARR 40 OD
5725 WATERSHED DAVID EASTWOOD / CHRIS DUVALL ENDEAVOUR  26

WAYFARER PETER LUKE OFFSHORE
6024 WEAPON ROBERT SKINNER FARR 40 OD

AUS 196 WETTY GRIPPER STUART MUIRHEAD/ADAM FRANCIS/FRANK VOLCKMAR J24
DAUS 198 WHIM GORDON INGATE DRAGON

4367 WHIMBREL PHILLIP MADDEN CAVALIER 28
6543 WHITE SATIN BILL NEILL X43

AUS 100 WHO KNOWS F D FOSTER J24
5494 WILD EAGLE PAUL MULHERIN ADAMS 40
4343 WILD OATS ROGER HICKMAN IMS/IRC RACER

M 10 WILD THING GRANT WHARINGTON SUPER MAXI
8484 WINDFLYT DOUG STURROCK TOWNSON 36
4895 WINDISFREE GARY BALLANTYNE PHASE 4
3938 WINGS THREE PAUL BILLINGHAM NORTHSHORE 38
7 WINYARD LANE SECURE PARKING YOUTH SAILING ACADEMY ELLIOTT 6.0
6607 WIRRAJURND PETER WHITFORD FIRST 36.7
263 WISTARIE BILL & LEONIE RATCLIFF MOODY 338

CYCA Yacht Register (continued)

PREF No Vessel Name Owner Name Design



Annual Report: year end 31 March 2004 Cruising Yacht Club of Australia60

WITCHDOCTOR JOHN DODD
WOOLLOOMOOLOO LOUISA GEDDES E22

5805 XANTHIPPE BERNARD O’SULLIVAN ADAMS 48
XANTIPPE CASSANDRA & NIGEL LAKE BAVARIA 44

5844 X-RATED KEVIN PUDNEY X YACHT
AUS 868 YANDOO XX NEVILLE WITTEY ETCHELLS

789 YARRAWIN PAUL RAMSEY CLASSIC 60
1836 YENDYS GEOFFREY ROSS IMS RACER
3000 YES GARY McLEOD SLOOP
840 YOUNGSTAR GARRY CORSTORPHAN YOUNG 840

SYD 222 YOU’RE HIRED ANDREA BANKS / ROS MORGAN BENETEAU 47.7
1097 YUM SING PAUL HUNTER PRINCE
43 ZEPHYROS GABE KEMENY ZESTON 40

AUS 7077 ZERO GRAVITY TOM PIOTROWSKI CATAMARAN
2312 ZIG ZAG MICHAEL CHERRY BONBRIDGE 27
5531 ZIG ZAG II GRAHAM THOMPSON J 35
5001 ZULU GRAEME CLARK ADAMS 31

Motor Cruisers

REF No Vessel Name Owner Name Class type

CRU AQUITANIA LEIGH MINEHAN MOTORCRUISER
CRU AUDREY J STUART PURVES TRAWLER
CRU CHARON JOSEPH ABRAHAM MOTOR CRUISER
CRU EOS J & L MEYER MOTOR CRUISER
CRU GALVESTON DAVID HEALY CARIBBEAN 35
CRU HASTA LA VISTA MICHAEL SANCHEZ RIVIERA
CRU IL VENTO GREGORY HAREMZA COMET 44
CRU JOLLY ROGER MATTHEW DE TORRES VIKING 30
CRU KATRIARNA II STAN RODGERS TSMV
CRU KODAK ACE K J (ACE) MOWTELL RUNABOUT
CRU LADY JOY JAMES & JOY McLAREN MOTOR CRUISER
CRU M V LIBERTY ROBERT J STEWART MOTOR VESSEL
CRU MARCUS B KAY COTTEE RIVER BOAT
CRU OFFSHORE CYCA STEBER 36
CRU OLIVERS TRAVELS MICHAEL SPIES RUNABOUT
CRU OLLIE NICK KINGSMILL MOTOR LAUNCH
CRU QE3 K J STEVENS MOTOR CRUISER
CRU ROBUSTUM BART RYAN MOTOR VESSEL
CRU ROULETTE CHRISTIAN AINSWORTH PROFIL MARINE 50
CRU STREETER STEPHEN SMART PEARL LUGGER
CRU TANTIVITY GRAHAM SWAN BRACKEN 36
CRU THE “A”TRAIN ROSS MACDONALD MOTOR LAUNCH
CRU TICKETY-TOO DEREK KING RIVIERA 32
CRU TINKA GEOFF LEE MOTOR CRUISER
CRU TSMV SWORDFISH ARTHUR GROGAN TSMV
CRU TWILIGHT SIR WILLIAM TYREE RIVIERA 43
CRU WYN-MAREE MAX YAFFA MOTOR SAILOR

CYCA Yacht Register (continued)

PREF No Vessel Name Owner Name Design





TM

Harken Australia Village Roadshow talent Club Marine Hood Sails Toll Logistics Andrew Short Marine

Sydney YachtsCamp Eden Quiet Little Drink Musto KAZ
Sailors with 
disABILITIES

Thakral Property
Management
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The Cruising Yacht Club of Australia would like to thank the following sponsors 

for coming on board for the 2003-2004 race series.

Cruising Yacht Club of Australia’s Principal Sponsor

Cruising Yacht Club of Australia’s Official Sponsors

Youth Sailing Academy Sponsors

New Beach Road, Darling Point, NSW 2027
ACN 000 116 423 (A company limited by guarantee) ABN 28 000 116 423

CRUISING YACHT CLUB

OF AUSTRALIA 

Where possible, we ask CYCA members to support these organisations


